Public Document Pack

Kirklees Council

Council Chamber - Town Hall, Huddersfield

Tuesday 30 October 2018

Dear Member

The Council will meet on Wednesday 7 November 2018 at 5.30 pm at
Council Chamber - Town Hall, Huddersfield.

This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s website.

The following matters will be debated:

Pages
1: Announcements by the Mayor and Chief Executive
To receive any announcements from the Mayor and Chief Executive.
2: Apologies for absence
To receive any apologies for absence.
3: Minutes of Previous Meeting 1-6

To agree and authorise the Mayor to sign the Minutes of Council
held on 10 October 2018.




4: Declaration of Interests

The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items of the
Agenda in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, which
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of them
items or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other
interests.

5: Petitions (From Members of the Council)

To receive any Petitions from Members of the Council in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule 9.

6: Deputations & Petitions (From Members of the Public)

The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations

from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which
the body has powers and responsibilities.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a
deputation.

7: Public Question Time

The Committee will hear any questions from the general public.

8: West Yorkshire Combined Authority - Minutes

To receive the Minutes of the Meeting of the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority held on 2 August 2018.




10:

11:

12:

Scrutiny Update
To receive an update on areas of Overview and Scrutiny work.

Contact: Penny Bunker, Governance and Democratic Engagement
Manager.

Annual Report of Director of Public Health - Healthy
Ageing

To receive the report of the Director of Public Health

Contact: Rachel Spencer-Henshall, Director of Public Health.

Key Discussion - Health Inequalities

Council will be invited to discuss the issue of Health Inequalities and
information to support this discussion will be provided in the
presentation of the Director of Public Health.

(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 5(5), the Key
Discussion shall commence no later than 7.00pm. Council
Procedure Rule 18 (23) permits a maximum of 60 minutes for this
item).

Written Questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members,
Chairs of Committees and Nominated Spokespersons

To receive written questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members, Chairs
of Committees and Nominated Spokespersons in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule 12/12(1).

The schedule of written questions will be tabled at the meeting.

25-76

77 -80



13: Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 14 as to Flockton Traffic Issues

To consider the following Motion in the names of Councillors Smith,
J Taylor and D Hall.

“This Council notes that work is now underway to produce an Option
Assessment Report in relation to the North Kirklees Orbital Route
which will help to determine if this is a viable scheme to develop.

Additionally the £77 million Cooper Bridge by pass, linking the A644
near junction 25 M62 and the A62 near Bradley Bar is currently in
the Design phase.

The Council recognises that both these schemes have the potential
to significantly affect the volume and flow of traffic in and around the
village of Flockton and on the B6118.

Given the existing severe traffic problems affecting the village of
Flockton and the undoubted increase in the future with
developments already in construction and the potential from the
Local Plan , the Council recognises that even if it were to overlook
the 2 major road schemes already mentioned, without intervention,
this situation will only continue to deteriorate.

Therefore the council calls on the Cabinet to undertake an
assessment of any impact upon the village of Flockton & B6118 from
the NKOR and A62 scheme and to ensure that due consideration is
given to the issues in Flockton prior to any work starting on either of
these road schemes.”




14: Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 14 as to Universal Credit

To consider the following Motion in the names of Councillors Uppal,
A U Pinnock, Homewood, Ullah, Murgatroyd, Griffiths, Kaushik,
Richards, Walker, Loonat, Hill, McBride, Mather, Khan and Pandor.

“This Council notes the Universal Credit (UC) policy and its roll out is
flawed, causing unnecessary hardship to local families and people
across the country whilst failing to meet its original aims.

This Council further notes, that in Kirklees, following the roll out of
UC Full Service in November 2017, over 12,730 people are now in
receipt of UC support, which has led to problems with rent arrears,
and general indebtedness particularly from the 5 week minimum wait
for an initial payment; as a result, there has been an increased use
of local welfare service provision and foodbanks. From 1/11/17 to
31/3/18 there was 2,177 referrals from the local welfare provision
team to four Kirklees foodbanks, up 27% from the same period in the
previous year. Recent figures from The Welcome Centre Foodbank
in Huddersfield show that between May to July 2018 referrals due to
Universal Credit stood at 611; in the first four months of 2018 the
centre received 469 referrals.

Official figures show hundreds of thousands of UC payments made
nationally are being subject to deductions used to pay back arrears
in rent, council tax and utility bills, pushing families into a downward
spiral of debt and poverty. Similarly, the local welfare provision team
in Kirklees are taking more calls from residents who have not been
able to make their UC payment last due to budgeting issues or
deductions taken from their payments due to advances, arrears
payments or tax credit overpayments. Between 1 April to 24 August
2018, 64% of referrals from the local welfare provision team to local
foodbanks and/or fuel vouchers were due to UC claimants struggling
with budgeting or low income. This compares to 33% for the period
1/11/17 to 31/3/18.

In addition, for people on UC who are in work, but are paid weekly or
fortnightly, the monthly UC payment is causing additional budgeting
problems; self-employed workers on UC are significantly worse off
than under legacy benefits and compared with employees; and
disabled people are being pushed into poverty with the abolition of
disability premiums when transitioning on to UC. Furthermore UC
payments currently go to one named member of a household. With
the present policy there is a real danger that if the whole payment
goes to one named individual there is no guarantee that the money
will be distributed fairly within the household.

This Council therefore resolves to write to the Secretary of State for
Work and Pensions, making these points, demanding that the
Government addresses these issues, and stops the roll out and



transition of people on to Universal Credit.”

15: Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 14 as to Giving People a say on the Final Brexit

Deal

To consider the following Motion in the names of Councillors
Lawson, A Pinnock, K Pinnock, Iredale, Burke, Eastwood, Wilson,
Munro, Cooper, Stewart-Turner and Allison.

“This Council notes:

The growing concern at the prospect of the UK leaving the
European Union (EU) with either a bad deal or no deal at all.

The growing support for people to have a say on the final
Brexit deal, including support from organisations such as the
British Medical Association, the Royal College of Nursing,
GMB, Prospect, TSSA, business leaders and student unions
representing over 980,000 students at 60 universities and
colleges.

This Council believes that:

By voting to leave the EU in June 2016, the UK voted for
departure but not the destination. There has never been a
consensus about how to leave and about our future
relationship with the EU post-Brexit, but the years since the
referendum on the UK’s membership of the EU has shown the
complexity of the task and how challenging Brexit is to deliver.

Since the referendum, there has been meaningful debate
about our EU membership; there is now greater public
awareness about the nature and impact of Brexit on the UK
and there is ongoing movement in public opinion.

The future direction of the country post-Brexit should not be
decided by a small number of parliamentarians in
Westminster. This is too big an issue and will affect all of us
for generations to come; sovereignty rests with the people.

The decision to leave the EU and subsequent negotiations
has created political, social and economic uncertainty in the
UK. Brexit is likely to have a major impact on local authorities,
including Kirklees Council, potentially reducing funding for
local and regional investment and development projects,
affecting governance and legal frameworks and impacting on
the progress of devolution deals.



e There are implications for Kirklees as a result of Brexit and
there is consternation from some of our residents, including
non-UK EU nationals, about what Brexit may mean for them.
For instance, leaving may have an impact on our local health
services, with recent NHS data revealing that 31 nurses and
health visitors from EU member states left Calderdale and
Huddersfield NHS Foundation Trust between March 2017 and
March 2018. Brexit is already having an impact on our local
manufacturing industry, while some businesses in our region
are reconsidering investment plans in new production and
new jobs while they await the Brexit deal. Furthermore, Brexit
may limit the educational opportunities for our young people.
It may cause damage to our local economy and public
services and result in a squeeze in living standards.

¢ As a country, we are not close to resolving the big issues
about which people care about; parliament is deadlocked and
the impasse will cause insurmountable damage to the UK. A
public vote is the only way to move forward.

e The British people deserve the right to have a final say on
what direction the country should take on Brexit and must
have a vote on the UK’s final deal with the European Union.

This Council, therefore, resolves to:

e Request that Cabinet updates and maintains the Council’s
Risk Register, ensuring that the Register includes an up-to-
date and robust account of the risks associated with Brexit;

e Be proactive in planning, outlining the issues and risks
associated with different Brexit scenarios, assessing the
possible impact on the Council and local area and
implementing recommend measures as soon as possible;

e Support people to have a say on any final Brexit deal through
a vote;

e Ask the Leader of the Council to write to the Prime Minister
expressing the Council’s support for people to have a final say
on the Brexit deal.”

16: Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 14 as to Modern Slavery

Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14 as
to Modern Slavery

To consider the following Motion in the names of Councillors
Hughes, Pandor, Sheard, Khan, Kendrick, Mather, McBride, Ahmed,
Scott, Turner, Lowe, A U Pinnock and Walker.



“This Council notes

Though slavery was abolished in the UK in 1833, there are more
slaves today than ever before in human history. Figures from the
International Labour Organisation (ILO) suggest that there are more
than 40 million people in modern slavery across the world, with
nearly 25 million held in forced labour.

There were 5145 potential victims were submitted to the National
Referral Mechanism in 2017; a 35% increase on 2016. A rising
number but still well below the 10,000 and 13,000 potential victims
estimated by the Home Office.

Modern Slavery is happening nationwide, including the Kirklees
district. Traffickers and slave masters use whatever means they
have at their disposal to coerce, deceive and force individuals into a
life of abuse, servitude and inhumane treatment. This can include
sexual and criminal exploitation.

Additionally, Government plans to bring in temporary migrant
workers to the UK from outside the EU to fill labour shortfalls after
Brexit could leave thousands of people at risk of exploitation.
Proposals for 5,000 non-EU workers to come on six-month visas to
work on British farms over the next two years could create a hotbed
for modern slavery unless key safeguards are adopted.

This Council believes:

e That action needs to be taken to raise awareness of modern
slavery and the fact that it is happening all over the UK,
including Kirklees.

e That the current support for victims is not sufficient and needs
to go beyond the 45 days they are currently given by the
government.

e That Councils have an important role to play in ensuring their
contracts and supplies don’t contribute to modern day slavery
and exploitation.

This Council resolves:
To adopt a policy against Modern Slavery to ensure our procurement practices
don’t support slavery; and
To ask Cabinet to ensure that:
e |ts corporate procurement team is trained to understand modern slavery
through the Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply’s (CIPS)
online course on Ethical Procurement and Supply;

e its Contractors are required to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act



2015, wherever it applies, with contract termination as a potential
sanction for non-compliance;

e any abnormally low-cost tenders are challenged to ensure they do not
rely upon the potential contractor practising modern slavery;

e it highlights to its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a
trade union and are not to be treated unfairly for belonging to one;

¢ it publicises its whistle-blowing system for staff to blow the whistle on
any suspected examples of modern slavery;

e its tendered contractors are encouraged to adopt a whistle-blowing
policy which enables their staff to blow the whistle on any suspected
examples of modern slavery;

e it reviews its contractual spending regularly to identify any potential
issues with modern slavery;

¢ it highlights for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern
slavery and refers them to the relevant agencies to be addressed,;

o it refers for investigation via the National Crime Agency’s national
referral mechanism any of its contractors identified as a cause for
concern regarding modern slavery; and

e it reports publicly on the implementation of this policy annually.
And ask the Chief Executive to write to the Government to ask that they:

e Commit to improved standards of protecting all victims, regardless of
their nationality, and put those standards into law.

e Ensure all victims are supported through their trauma, and protected
from their traffickers. The government should work with civil society to
build a comprehensive long-term system of protection for all victims of
modern slavery practices.

e Develop a child advocates scheme to protect trafficked children should
be rolled out as soon as possible. We still see children going missing
from the care of authorities at ‘alarming’ rate.

e Restore the full right for migrant domestic workers to change
employers, to give them a route out of abuse. The ability to legally leave
one’s abusive employer without worrying about deportation is the most
basic protection everyone should have.

e Invest: The police need resources to carry out complex trafficking
investigations. In the current climate of cuts, these often complex
investigations are too often bumped down in the priority order for more
‘urgent’ work, with results easier to show.



e Ensure that in its Brexit negotiations, the UK it retains full access to
European intelligence and mechanisms making international
investigations possible.

¢ Review the performance of the Transparency in Supply Chains Clause
of the Modern Slavery Act, to identify where it can be strengthened to
ensure that efforts against slavery in international business supply
chains are optimised.”

17: Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 14 as to Child Sexual Exploitation

To consider the following Motion in the names of Councillors D Hall
and Watson.

“This Council resolves that the Leader of the Council should write to
the Home Secretary for the purposes of inviting the Minister to cause
an inquiry to be held under the provisions of the Inquiries Act 2005

in relation to a case where it appears to him that particular events
have caused, or are capable of causing, public concern, those
events being the conviction of a number of individuals from the
Kirklees area for offences of Child Sexual Exploitation and the
ongoing prosecution of a number of other individuals from the same
area for offences of Child Sexual Exploitation.”

(This Agenda item is submitted as Opposition Priority Business, in
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 17, and shall therefore be
brought forward if the consideration of the item has not commenced
within two hours of the start of the meeting).

By Order of the Council

i

Chief Executive



Contact Officer: Andrea Woodside

Agenda Item 3:

COUNCIL

KIRKLEES COUNCIL

At the Meeting of the Council of the Borough of Kirklees held at
Council Chamber - Town Hall, Huddersfield on Wednesday 10 October 2018

PRESENT

The Deputy Mayor (Councillor Mumtaz Hussain) in the Chair

Councillor Masood Ahmed
Councillor Karen Allison
Councillor Gulfam Asif
Councillor Martyn Bolt
Councillor Nosheen Dad
Councillor Eric Firth
Councillor Charles Greaves
Councillor Steve Hall
Councillor Erin Hill

Councillor James Homewood
Councillor Paul Kane
Councillor Viv Kendrick
Councillor John Lawson
Councillor Robert Light
Councillor Terry Lyons
Councillor Peter McBride
Councillor Darren O'Donovan
Councillor Shabir Pandor
Councillor Carole Pattison
Councillor Amanda Pinnock
Councillor Kath Pinnock
Councillor Mohammad Sarwar
Councillor Ken Sims
Councillor Richard Smith
Councillor Julie Stewart-Turner
Councillor Kath Taylor
Councillor Sheikh Ullah
Councillor Michael Watson
Councillor Nell Griffiths
Councillor Richard Murgatroyd
Councillor Harpreet Uppal

COUNCILLORS

Councillor Mahmood Akhtar
Councillor Bill Armer

Councillor Donna Bellamy
Councillor Cahal Burke

Councillor Richard Eastwood
Councillor Michelle Grainger-Mead
Councillor David Hall

Councillor Lisa Holmes

Councillor Edgar Holroyd-Doveton
Councillor Christine Iredale
Councillor Manisha Roma Kaushik
Councillor Musarrat Khan
Councillor Vivien Lees-Hamilton
Councillor Fazila Loonat
Councillor Naheed Mather
Councillor Bernard McGuin
Councillor Marielle O'Neill
Councillor Nigel Patrick
Councillor Mussarat Pervaiz
Councillor Andrew Pinnock
Councillor Hilary Richards
Councillor David Sheard
Councillor Elizabeth Smaje
Councillor Mohan Sokhal
Councillor John Taylor

Councillor Graham Turner
Councillor Rob Walker

Councillor Habiban Zaman
Councillor Alison Munro
Councillor Mark Thompson

Page 1



60

61

62

63

64

65

Council - 10 October 2018

Announcements by the Mayor and Chief Executive
The Deputy Mayor informed Council, that in the absence of the Mayor, Councillor
Gwen Lowe, he would Chair this meeting of Council.

The Deputy Mayor invited the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services to announce
that the Council’'s Market Service and Creative Economy Team had won the
‘Innovation of the Year’ Award at the recent National Association of British Market
Authorities (NABMA) conference.

The Chief Executive (i) welcomed the Members of Youth Council who had attended
to observe the meeting and (ii) reminded Council of the restrictions applying to
voting under Section 106 of the Local Government Act 1992, in respect of Agenda
ltem 8.

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Cooper, D Firth,
Hughes, Lowe, Scott and Wilson.

Minutes of Previous Meeting
RESOLVED - That the Minutes of Council held on 12 September be approved as a
correct record.

Declaration of Interests
No interests were declared.

Petitions (From Members of the Council)
No petitions were received.

Deputations & Petitions (From Members of the Public)

(a) Council received a deputation from Caroline Goodwill in respect of Red
House, Gomersal, and the importance of preserving local heritage assets.

(b) Council received a deputation on behalf of the Friends of Mill Lane School,
delivered by Michelle lllingworth, which raised issues relating to road and
traffic safety concerns within the vicinity of the school. A petition was also
submitted.

(c) Council received a deputation from June Jones, on behalf of Unite Union, in
regards to the Motion on Universal Credit at Agenda Item 15.

(d) Council received a deputation from Elena Delaney, Charlotte Michael, and
pupils from Scissett Middle School in respect of road and traffic safety
concerns, and in regards to the Motion on Flockton Traffic Issues at Agenda
ltem 14.

(e) Council received a deputation from Stephanie Tague in respect of the impact
of potential car parking charging upon the vitality of Cleckheaton Town
Centre. A petition was also submitted.

The Cabinet Member for Economy (Clir Turner) responded to (a) and (c).

The Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment responded to (b), (d) and
(e). With regards to (b), the Cabinet Member advised that the matter would be
referred to Cabinet Committee — Local Issues.

Page 2



66

67

68

Council - 10 October 2018

Public Question Time

Questions were received from (i) Caroline Goodwill in respect of proposals for the
site at Red House, Gomersal and (ii) Elena Delaney in respect of funding for
improvements to the road infrastructure within the Flockton area.

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services responded to (i). The Cabinet Member
for Economy responded to (ii).

Council Budget Strategy Update 2019-2022 (Reference from Cabinet)
It was moved by Councillor Turner, seconded by Councillor Pandor, and

RESOLVED -

1) That the decision of Cabinet, as set out at Paragraph 1 of the considered
report, be noted.

2) That approval be given to the updated baseline general fund revenue and
Housing Revenue Account budget forecasts over the 2019-2022 period, as
set out at Appendix A (general fund) and Appendix C (HRA) of the
considered report.

3) That approval be given to the revisions to earmarked reserves and general
balances, as set out at Appendix B.

4) That approval be given to the changes to the existing plan, as set out at
Appendix D.

5) That approval be given to the flexible receipts strategy, as set out at
Appendix E.

Written Questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members, Chairs of Committees and
Nominated Spokespersons

Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 12, Council received the following
written questions;

(1)  Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Communities and
Environment (Councillor Mather)

‘What is the Council’s policy on replacing concrete litter bins?’
The Cabinet Member to responded thereto.

(2)  Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Economy (Councillor
McBride)

‘Please will you give an update on Pioneer House, including total spending
to date on the project?’

The Cabinet Member to responded thereto.

(3)  Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Economy (Councillor
McBride)

“How long will it take to complete your masterplans for Huddersfield and
Dewsbury town centres?’

Page 3



(4)

()

(6)

(8)

Council - 10 October 2018

The Cabinet Member responded thereto.

Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Housing and
Democracy (Councillor Scott)

‘Not counting the 550 “Excellent Homes for Life” units commissioned by the
last Conservative administration, how many council houses have been built
in Kirklees since 20097’

The Cabinet Member for Economy responded on behalf of Councillor Scott.

Question by Councillor Iredale to the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
(Councillor Turner)

‘How are you measuring satisfaction with the Council’s automated
telephone system?’

The Cabinet Member responded thereto.

Question by Councillor A Pinnock to the Cabinet Member for Communities
and Environment (Councillor Mather)

‘Can the Council claim compensation from Virgin Media where the
installation of new cables result in local pavements and verges being
damaged?’

The Cabinet Member responded thereto.

Question by Councillor Eastwood to the Cabinet Member for Communities
and Environment (Councillor Mather)

‘There are estate agents ‘for sale’ signs cluttering a piece of council-owned
land in Lindley. Numerous requests have been made to remove the signs,
but the signs have remained in place and no enforcement has been
undertaken by the Council. When can residents expect to see the signs
removed?’

The Cabinet Member responded thereto.

Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
(Councillor Turner)

‘How many new dwellings are expected per year in your new budget
assumptions?’

The Cabinet Member responded thereto.

Page 4



69

70

7

72

Council - 10 October 2018

(9)  Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Economy (Councillor
McBride)

‘How many new dwellings are expected per year in your Local Plan?’
The Cabinet Member responded thereto.

(10)  Question by Councillor Holmes to the Lead Member for Children’s Scrutiny
Panel (Councillor Burke)

‘Have you, as Chair of Children’s Scrutiny, asked the Police to attend a
meeting to provide Members with a full briefing on the current CSE
situation in Kirklees?’

The Lead Member responded thereto.
(11)  Question by Councillor Smith to the Leader of the Council (Councillor Pandor)

‘Can we be confident that the threatened Bin Strike is now not going to
happen?’

The Leader responded thereto.

Minutes of Cabinet
RESOLVED - The Minutes of Cabinet, held on 21 and 29 August 2018 were
received, and noted.

Holding the Executive to Account

Council received Portfolio Updates from the Cabinet Member for Economy
(Councillor McBride) and the Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care
(Councillor Khan).

Oral questions were addressed to the Cabinet Member for Economy (Councillor
McBride).

(The remainder of oral questions were not received due to time constraints).

Minutes of Other Committees
RESOLVED - That the following Minutes be received and noted;

(a) Appeals Panel — 27 July 2018
(b) Corporate Parenting Board — 30 April 2018
(c) Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee — 3 September 2018
(d) Personnel Committee — 30 July 2018
(e) Strategic Planning Committee — 2 August and 30 August 2018.
Oral Questions to Committee Chairs and Nominated Spokespersons of Joint
Committees/External Bodies
Oral Questions to the following Chairs and Spokespersons were received;
- Strategic Planning Committee (Councillor S Hall)

Page 5



73

74

75

76

Council - 10 October 2018

- Kirklees Neighbourhood Housing (Councillor Smaje)
- Kirklees Active Leisure (Councillor Sokhal)
- West Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel (Councillor A U Pinnock)

(At this stage of the Meeting, it was moved by Councillor Smith and seconded
by Councillor Bolt, that Council Procedure Rules be suspended to allow for
the consideration of Agenda item 14 (Minute No. 73 refers) prior to the
termination of the meeting. The Motion, on being put to the vote, was not
carried).

Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14 as to
Flockton Traffic Issues
Item not considered (due to time constraints).

Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14 as to
Universal Credit
Item not considered (due to time constraints).

Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14 as to Giving
People a say on the Final Brexit Deal
Item not considered (due to time constraints).

Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14 as to Modern
Slavery
Item not considered (due to time constraints).

Page 6



Agenda Item 4.

............................................ pareq T T T
[N/A] ¢uoneiapisuod
Japun si1salajul ue aney
NOA Yo1ym ul wall ayl ajlym (@I
Bunsaw ayl woly meipyliim 12y10, ue 10 1salalul
1SaJ91ul 01 noA alinbal 1sala1ul Aleiunoad a|qeso|asIp 1SaJa1ul
InoA Jjo uonduosap Jaug 3yl Jo ainyeu ay) saoQ e 69) 1s8491ul Jo adAL ue aAey noA yaiym ul waj|

10]|19UN0D JO aWeN

14 SONILIIN FILLINWOD/LINIGVI/TTONNOD

IDUN0D
S1Sddd.INI 40 NOILVdV103d

1IONNOD S THHINA

Page 7



"SSe|9 1ey Jo [euded aleys
PanssI [e10] 8y} JO Yipalpuny auo SPasdxa 1Salalul [elonauag e sey ‘1auned [IA19 InoA 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym
Ul SSe[d auo Aue Jo saleys ayl JO anjeA [euiwou [e10] 8y} ‘SSe|9 auo ueyl aiow Jo SI Apoq ey jo [ended ateys ayi Hi
1o ‘Apoq
Teys Jo [ended areys panssi [e101 8y} JO Yipalpuny auo 10 000‘GZF SPaaIxXa SaNliNdas ayl JO anjeA [euiwou [e10} ay)
- Jayue (q)
pue ‘Aoyine 1o |1ounod JNoA Jo Balse ay) ul pue| Jo ssauisng jo ade(d e sey (ebpajmouy JInoA 01) Apoq eyl (e)
- a19ym Apoq e Jo sanundas ul sey Jauned [IA19 IN0OA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym 1salaiul [eiolauaq Auy

"1SaJaul [elolauaq e sey ‘Jauned |IAID
INoA 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym uil Apog e SI Jueual ayl pue AlLioyine Jo [1I9unod INoA si piojpue| ayl - (ebpajmouy] INoA 01) alaym Aoueual Auy

*19buo| 1o yiuow e 10j Auoyine
10 [19UN02 INOA Jo BaJe ayl ul pue] Adn220 01 spjoy ‘Jauried [IA19 IN0A 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym (s1ayio yum Apuiol 1o suofe) aoual| Auy

*Allloyine 1o |1ouno9 INOA JO Bale ayl UuIylM SI Ydiym pue aAey ‘laurred |IAID INOA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym pue| ul 1salaul [eidlauaq Auy
‘pabreydsip AN usag 1ou sey Yyaiym e
pue {palndaxa aQ 0] aJe SHIOM 1o papinoid ag 0] aJe S3JIAISS 10 SPO0B Yaiym Japun e

- Alloyine 1o |19unod INoA pue (1salalul [elolBuag e

sey ‘Jaunred [IAID IN0A 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym ul Apoq e 1o) Jauued [IAID INoA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘nOA usamiaq apew SI YdIym 19euod Auy

'sasuadxa UoI1199]3 INOA Splemo] 10 ‘lagquiaw e se sannp 1no BuiAied ul noA Agq pasinoul sasuadxa Aue Jo 10adsal
ul pouad 1ueasjal ayl uiyum papiaoid o apew (Alioyine 1o |1IDunod JNOA Wl ueyl JaYylo) ujauaq eidueul) 1ayio Aue Jo uoisinoid 1o JuswAed Auy

‘'sayeuapun ‘suired |IAI9 10 asnods InoA 1o ‘noA yoiym ‘ureb 1o 11joad 10) UO palied uoRIOoA 10 uoissajold ‘apen ‘@210 QuawAiojdwa Auy

“Jaunred [IAID INOA a1am AUl JI Se U0 ‘9JIm J0 pueqsny se Bulall are noA woym yum uosiad Aue sapnjoul Jaunred [IAID 10 asnhods
0] 92uaJajal Auy "SajnJ [euoneU Mau ay] Japun s1salalul Aeiundad ajqesojasip 1noA are Aay) ‘s1salaiul Areiundad Buimol|o) ayi Jo Aue aney noA |

s1saJa1u| Alelunoad a|qeso|asig

S310N

Page 8



Agenda Item 8:

West
Yorkshi.re

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY
HELD ON THURSDAY, 2 AUGUST 2018 AT COMMITTEE ROOM A,
WELLINGTON HOUSE, 40-50 WELLINGTON STREET, LEEDS

Present:

Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe (Chair) Bradford Council (to minute 36)
Councillor Tim Swift MBE Calderdale Council

Councillor Judith Blake CBE Leeds City Council (to minute 36)
Councillor Peter Box CBE Wakefield Council (to minute 36)
Councillor Stewart Golton Leeds City Council

Councillor David Hall Kirklees Council

Councillor Shabir Pandor Kirklees Council

Councillor John Pennington Bradford Council

Councillor Andrew Waller City of York Council

In attendance:

Graham Botham Network Rail (to minute 33)

Rob Warnes Northern (to minute 33)

Graham Meiklejohn Transpennine Express (to minute 33)
Angela Taylor West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Caroline Allen West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Dave Pearson West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Ruth Chaplin West Yorkshire Combined Authority

28. Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Roger Marsh.
29. Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no pecuniary interests declared by members at the meeting.
30. Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
Resolved:
(@)  Thatin accordance with paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the

Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of Appendices 7 and 10 to Agenda Item 8 on the

Page 9



31.

32.

grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the
press and public were present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information and for the reasons set out in the report that in all
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

(b)  Thatin accordance with paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of Appendix 1 to Agenda Iltem 13 on the grounds
that it contains legally privileged information and if members of the
press and public were present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information. It is considered that the public interest in
maintaining the content of the appendix as exempt outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information as publication could prejudice legal
proceedings.

Minutes of the Meeting of the Combined Authority held on 28 June 2018

Resolved: That the minutes of the annual meeting of the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority held on 28 June 2018 be approved and signed by the
Chair.

Governance Arrangements

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of Resources in
respect of governance arrangements.

The report provided an update on appointments to committees and panels of
the Combined Authority and sought approval for the proposed membership of
the Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel which was set out in Appendix 2
of the submitted report. Councillor Waller confirmed that York would like to be
represented on the Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel and it was
agreed that a nomination would be sought from them.

Members also endorsed the appointment of Councillor Blake as the
representative for the Combined Authority and City of York Council on the Rail
North Committee of Transport for the North.

Resolved:

(@) That the updated appointments as set out in Appendices 1 and 2 of the
submitted report be noted.

(b)  That the membership of the Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel
as set out in Appendix 2 to the submitted report be approved and a
nomination from York City Council be sought.

(c) That the appointment of Councillor Blake as the representative for the
Combined Authority and the City of York Council on the Rail North
Committee of Transport for the North, with Councillor Hinchcliffe as her
substitute be endorsed.

Page 10



33.

Rail Performance and Governance

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of Transport
Services on rail performance and governance.

At the last meeting, the Combined Authority had expressed their deep concern
about the severe impact the poor rail performance in the north was having on
passengers, employment, tourism and the economy in the City Region
following timetable changes introduced in May 2018.

The meeting was attended by Rob Warnes, Performance and Planning
Director, Northern, Graham Botham, System Operator Director, Network Rail
and Graham Meiklejohn, Regional Development Manager, Transpennine
Express. They offered their sincere apologies for the chaos and disruption to
the rail services and acknowledged that improvements must be made urgently.
Each was given the opportunity to address the meeting and provide an
overview of their involvement in the process for planning the timetable
changes, the reasons for the breakdown in performance following its
introduction, the compensation being offered to passengers and the steps
being taken to improve performance.

It was considered that there was a lack of accountability and members were
extremely disappointed that assurances could not be given as to when
improvements to the level of service would be made and that such disruption
would not reoccur. They stressed that the compensation packages for affected
passengers must be more widely communicated using all media sources.

It was noted that a review of the circumstances leading up to the timetable
change was to be undertaken and this would be led jointly by Councillor Judith
Blake and Jo Johnson, the Rail Minister. Members noted the remit of the
Blake/Johnson Review and the terms of reference which were attached at
Appendix 1. They discussed the key points outlined in the submitted report
and these would be formally submitted for consideration by the review team.

A meeting would be arranged with representatives from the rail industry once
the report and recommendations of the Blake/Johnson review have been
received and more information on the measures being taken to improve
performance including detailed, up-to-date performance figures and
assurances on future performance can be provided. In the meantime the rail
operators and Network Rail were asked to provide each district within the City
Region with a summary of their plans.

Resolved:

(@)  That the impact on passengers of the May 2018 rail timetable change
be noted.

(b)  That the submission of the key points set out in paragraph 2.24 of the

submitted report to the Blake/Johnson Rail North Partnership Joint
Review be approved.

Page 11



34.

35.

(c) That a meeting be arranged to consider the outcome of the
Blake/Johnson review and discuss the issues further.

(d)  That the Director of Transport Services request Northern, Network Rail
and Transpennine Express provide a summary of their plans for each
district of the City Region.

Devolution and the Review of Local Enterprise Partnerships

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Interim Director of Policy
and Strategy which:

e Provided an update on progress towards securing devolution to Leeds
City Region.

¢ Provided details of the proposals contained in the Review of Local
Enterprise Partnerships (LEP), announced by the Government on 24
July 2018.

Members noted the recent developments in relation to the One Yorkshire
proposition and copies of the Secretary of State’s letter in respect of the One
Yorkshire submission and the response from the One Yorkshire Leaders were
attached at Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted report.

It was reported that the Government had recently announced the Review of
Local Enterprise Partnerships and the summary of the Government’s
proposals was attached at Appendix 3. It was noted that the Government has
asked for proposals for changes to existing LEP geographies, particularly in
relation to the requirement to remove overlaps, by the end of September 2018.
Councillor Waller reported that York City Council were disappointed at the rigid
view of the geography as they overlapped into two LEP areas and asked that
their concerns be taken into consideration. It was noted that there will be
engagement with stakeholders and members requested further information
and discussion on the various options to determine how best to respond.

Resolved:

(a) That the recent developments in relation to securing devolution to Leeds
City Region be noted.

(b)  That further discussions be held in respect of the review of Local
Enterprise Partnerships.

Capital Spending and Project Approvals
The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of Delivery on the
progression and funding for the following schemes through the Combined

Authority’s assurance process:

¢ Rochdale Canal — Cycle Safety Fund
e Corridor Improvement Programme — A58/A672
e Corridor Improvement Programme — A646/A6033

Page 12



e Beech Hill (Phase 1a and 1b)

Details of the four schemes were provided in the submitted report and it was
noted that these had been considered and recommended for approval by the
Investment Committee.

Members also considered the following schemes which have had change
request reports assessed in line with the Combined Authority’s assurance
process and also been considered and recommended by the Investment

Committee for approval:

Forge Lane/Dewsbury Riverside
Kirklees Housing Project
Bradford One City Park

Halifax Station Gateway

Consideration was given to the following schemes that have proceeded
directly to the Combined Authority due to the nature of the funding streams or
timescales related to delivery. Each scheme has been assessed in line with
the Combined Authority’s assurance process:

e Skills [re]boot project
e Leeds City Region Employment Hub

The Combined Authority also considered a recommendation to enter into a
Funding Agreement with Wakefield Council in relation to the Wakefield
Eastern Relief Road and details were provided in exempt Appendix 10.

The update on the Leeds New Station Street scheme was noted. It was
reported that further work was being undertaken and a final business case will
be considered by the Investment Committee in September with approval for
the scheme being delegated to the Managing Director in consultation with the
Chair of the Combined Authority.

Members discussed the funding and delivery of schemes and it was noted that
a report on the impact of Brexit on the City Region would be prepared for the
next meeting of the Combined Authority.

Resolved:

(a) In respect of Rochdale Canal - Cycle Safety Fund - Canal Towpath
Improvement Phase 2 - Hebden Bridge to Todmorden —

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the Rochdale Canal Towpath Improvement project proceeds
through decision point 2 and work commences on activity 4 (full
business case).

(i)  That an indicative approval is given to the total project value of
£1.553 million and the Combined Authority funding contribution of

Page 13



£1.473 million (from the Department for Transport — Cycle Safety
Grant fund) with full approval to spend being granted once the
scheme has progressed through the assurance process to
decision point 5 (full business case with finalised costs).The
remainder will be funded by £80,000 from Calderdale Council.

(iif) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report
including at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director following a
recommendation by either Investment Committee or the
Combined Authority’s Programme Appraisal Team. This will be
subject to the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in
the submitted report.

(b) In respect of the Corridor Improvement Programme - AS8/A672 -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the Corridor Improvements Programme scheme - A58/A672
proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences on
activity 4 (full business case).

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £6.024
million is given to be funded from the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund with full approval to spend being granted once the
scheme has progressed through the assurance process to
decision point 5 (full business case with finalised costs).

(iii) That the development costs of £706,665 are approved in order to
progress the scheme to decision point 4 (full business case), and
that the Combined Authority issue an addendum to the existing
Funding Agreement with Calderdale Council for expenditure of up
to £706,665 from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund taking
the total approval to £941,665.

(iv) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route set out in the submitted report, to
include at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in the
submitted report.

(c) In respect of the Corridor Improvement Programme - A646/6033
Calderdale -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the Corridor Improvements Programme scheme - A646/6033
proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences on

Page 14



(d)

Activity 4 (full business case).

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £5.092
million is given to be funded from the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund with full approval to spend being granted once the
scheme has progressed through the Assurance Process to
decision point 5 (full business case with finalised costs).

(iii) That the development costs of £594,581 are approved in order to
progress the scheme to decision point 4(full business case), and
that the Combined Authority issue an addendum to the existing
Funding Agreement with Calderdale Council for expenditure of up
to £594,581 from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund taking
the total approval to £789,581.

(iv) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route set out in the submitted report, to
include at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in the
submitted report.

In respect of Beech Hill, Halifax -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the Beech Hill project (phase 1a) proceeds through decision
point 5 and work commences on activity 6 (delivery).

(i) That the Beech Hill project (phase 1b) proceeds through decision
point 2 and work commences on activity 4 (full business case)
through the provision of an updated business case for both phases
1a and 1b.

(i) That indicative approval is given to the total revised Combined
Authority funding requirement of £2.197 million, to be funded from
the Local Growth Fund. Phase 1b total forecast cost of £797,000
to be funded from over-programming against the Local Growth
Fund with full approval to spend being granted once the scheme
has progressed through the assurance process to decision point 5
(full business case with finalised costs).

(iv) That approval is given for expenditure of up to £1.4 million for
Phase 1a of the project to be funded from the Combined
Authority’s Local Growth Deal and that the Combined Authority
enter into a Funding Agreement with Calderdale Council for
expenditure up to £1.4 million.

(v) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report to
include for Phase 1b at decision points 4 and 5 through a
delegation to the Combined Authority’s Managing Director

Page 15



following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme
remaining within the tolerances outlined in the submitted report.

(e) In respect of Forge Lane / Dewsbury Riverside -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the change request is approved to omit the Forge Lane site
from the Growth Deal Priority 4a programme and that this site is
substituted with the Dewsbury Riverside site with an indicative
allocation of a grant from the Local Growth Fund to the value
specified in the exempt Appendix, with full approval to spend being
granted once the scheme has progressed through the Assurance
Process to decision point 5 (full business case with finalised
costs).

(i) That the Dewsbury Riverside project proceeds through decision
point 2 and work commences on activity 4 (full business case).

(iii) That the funding support to the Dewsbury Riverside site is
provided in the form of a grant to the value specified in the exempt
Appendix, rather than as a loan, (which was previously approved).

(iv) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report,
including at decision point 5, following a recommendation by the
Combined Authority’s programme appraisal team. This will be
subject to the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in
the submitted report.

(f) In respect of Kirklees Housing -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the change request to the Kirklees Housing project is
approved to reduce the Local Growth Fund funding for Phase 1
(Ashbrow Housing and Soothill Housing Sites) to £700,000.

(i) That the change request is approved to omit the Stile Common
site from the project and that this site is substituted with the
Waterfront site (Phase 2) with an indicative allocation for a
£300,000 loan from the Local Growth Fund, subject to Phase 2
being brought back through the assurance process in the form of
an expression of interest and considered by Investment
Committee and the Combined Authority at decision point 2 (case

paper).

(i) That the Combined Authority enters into an addendum to the
existing loan agreement with Kirklees Council to reflect the change

Page 16



request.

(iv) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report
following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme
remaining within the tolerances outlined in the submitted report.

(9) In respect of One City Park, Bradford -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the change request to the One City Park project is approved
to extension to the project timescales and that the project should
reconfirm its business case as part of undertaking activity 5 (full
business case with finalised costs).

(i) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report,
including at decision point 5 through a delegation to the Combined
Authority’s Managing Director following a recommendation by the
Combined Authority’s Programme Appraisal Team. This will be
subject to the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in
the submitted report.

(h) In respect of Halifax Station Gateway -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the change request to the Halifax Station Gateway project of
£793,000 additional development funds is approved. This takes
the total approved development funds to £1.108 million.

(i) That the Combined Authority enters into a £793,000 addendum to
the existing funding agreement with Calderdale Council for
expenditure of up to £1.108 million from the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund.

(iii)  That future approvals are made in accordance with the Approval
Pathway and Approval Route outlined in the submitted report
including at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director following a
recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining
within the tolerances outlined in the submitted report.

(i) In respect of Leeds City Region Employment Hub, the Combined
Authority approves:

(i) That the Leeds City Region Employment Hub project proceeds
through decision point 2 and work commences on activity 5 (full

Page 17



(k)

business case with finalised costs).

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £9 million is
given. The Combined Authority contribution will be £8.738 million,
which will be funded from an anticipated ESF grant of £5.786
million, Business Rates Pool funding of £2.71 million (year 1 and
years 2 & 3 allocation) and £242,000 from an existing revenue
approval. Full approval to spend will be granted if the scheme has
been successful in securing ESF funding and once the scheme
has progressed through the assurance process to decision point 5
(full business case with finalised costs).

(iif) That future approvals for Employment Hub are made in
accordance with the assurance pathway and approval route
outlined in the submitted report including at decision point 5
through a delegation to the Combined Authority’s Managing
Director following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme
remaining within the tolerances outlined in the submitted report.

In respect of Skills [re]boot project, the Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the [re]boot project proceeds through decision point 2 and
work commences on activity 5 (full business case with finalised
costs).

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £3.145
million is given (of this, the Combined Authority’s contribution will
be £2.870 million which will be funded from an anticipated ESF
grant of £1.573 and £1.297 million from Section 31 reserves). Full
approval to spend will be granted if the scheme is successful in
securing ESF funding and once the scheme has progressed
through the assurance process to decision point 5 (full business
case with finalised costs).

(iii) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report
including at decision point 5 through a delegation to the Combined
Authority’s Managing Director following a recommendation by the
Combined Authority’s Investment Committee. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in the
submitted report.

In respect of Wakefield Eastern Relief Road, the Combined Authority
approves:

(i) That waiver of the requirement that the final account for the
Wakefield Eastern Relief Road is settled prior to the Combined
Authority entering into an addendum to the funding agreement
with Wakefield Council.

(i) That the Combined Authority enters into an addendum to the
existing Funding Agreement with Wakefield Council for

Page 18



expenditure of up to £5.574 million taking the total value of the
funding agreement to £37.593 million.

()] In respect of Leeds New Station Street, approval of the full business
case and full business with finalised costs for the Leeds New Station
Street scheme be delegated to the Combined Authority’s Managing
Director in consultation with the Chair of the Combined Authority
following consideration by the Investment Committee in September
2018.

(a) Corridor Improvement Programme - A58 / A672

In respect of the Corridor Improvement Programme - AS8/A672 -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the Corridor Improvements Programme scheme - A58/A672
proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences on
activity 4 (full business case)

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £6.024
million is given to be funded from the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund with full approval to spend being granted once the
scheme has progressed through the assurance process to
decision point 5 (full business case with finalised costs).

(iif) That the development costs of £706,665 are approved in order to
progress the scheme to decision point 4 (full business case), and
that the Combined Authority issue an addendum to the existing
Funding Agreement with Calderdale Council for expenditure of up
to £706,665 from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund taking
the total approval to £941,665.

(iv) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route set out in the submitted report, to
include at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in the
submitted report.

(b) Corridor Improvement Programme - A646 / A6033
Resolved: In respect of the Corridor Improvement Programme -

AB646/6033 Calderdale -

That following a recommendation from the Investment Committee, the
Combined Authority approves:

Page 19



(i)  That the Corridor Improvements Programme scheme - A646/6033
proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences on
Activity 4 (full business case).

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £5.092
million is given to be funded from the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund with full approval to spend being granted once the
scheme has progressed through the Assurance Process to
decision point 5 (full business case with finalised costs)

(iii) That the development costs of £594,581 are approved in order to
progress the scheme to decision point 4(full business case), and
that the Combined Authority issue an addendum to the existing
Funding Agreement with Calderdale Council for expenditure of up
to £594,581 from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund taking
the total approval to £789,581.

(iv) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route set out in the submitted report, to
include at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in the
submitted report.

Leeds City Region Employment Hub

In respect of Leeds City Region Employment Hub, the Combined
Authority approves:

(i) That the Leeds City Region Employment Hub project proceeds
through decision point 2 and work commences on activity 5 (full
business case with finalised costs)

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £9 million is
given. The Combined Authority contribution will be £8.738 million,
which will be funded from an anticipated ESF grant of £5.786
million, Business Rates Pool funding of £2.71 million (year 1 and
years 2 & 3 allocation) and £242,000 from an existing revenue
approval. Full approval to spend will be granted if the scheme has
been successful in securing ESF funding and once the scheme
has progressed through the assurance process to decision point 5
(full business case with finalised costs).

(iii) That future approvals for Employment Hub are made in
accordance with the assurance pathway and approval route
outlined in the submitted report including at decision point 5
through a delegation to the Combined Authority’s Managing
Director following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme
remaining within the tolerances outlined in the submitted report.

Page 20



36.

37.

(d) Skills Reboot Programme

In respect of Skills [re]boot project, the Combined Authority approves:

(i) That the [re]boot project proceeds through decision point 2 and
work commences on activity 5 (full business case with finalised
costs).

(i) That an indicative approval to the total project value of £3.145
million is given (of this, the Combined Authority’s contribution will
be £2.870 million which will be funded from an anticipated ESF
grant of £1.573 and £1.297 million from Section 31 reserves). Full
approval to spend will be granted if the scheme is successful in
securing ESF funding and once the scheme has progressed
through the assurance process to decision point 5 (full business
case with finalised costs).

(iif) That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report
including at decision point 5 through a delegation to the Combined
Authority’s Managing Director following a recommendation by the
Combined Authority’s Investment Committee. This will be subject
to the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in the
submitted report.

Channel 4 National HQ

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Executive Head of
Economic Services which provided an update on the effort to attract the
Channel 4 national HQ to Leeds City Region.

Members welcomed the announcement that Leeds has now been shortlisted
as one of the final three locations which was tribute to the effort and
partnership approach achieved across the City Region. There was
unanimous support from members for the bid which, if successful, would
provide benefits and opportunities for all districts in the City Region

Further information will be requested by Channel 4 and a process of
negotiation will take place over the summer. It is expected that Channel 4 will
announce its preferred location for the national headquarters and two new
creative hubs in the autumn.

Resolved: That the City Region’s bid for Channel 4 continue to be supported.

Councillor Hinchcliffe left and Councillor Swift chaired the remainder of
the meeting.

Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget 2019/20

Page 21



38.

39.

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of Resources
which provided an update on the medium term financial strategy and budget
planning for 2019/20.

Members noted the proposed timetable for the development of the financial
strategy and budget and for engaging with members and partners before its
approval in February 2019 which was attached at Appendix 1. A budget
summary which set out the position agreed by the Combined Authority in
February 2018 was attached at Appendix 2. It was reported that any changes
that have occurred since February 2018 would be addressed in the revised
strategy and members discussed the key issues, assumptions and changes to
be taken into consideration which were detailed in the submitted report.

A report would be brought to the next meeting, setting out details of costs and
income for the next three years and highlighting where decisions are required.
Consideration would also be given for public consultation and engagement as
part of the budget setting process.

Resolved: That the report be noted.
Corporate Planning & Performance

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of Resources in
respect of corporate planning and performance.

Members discussed corporate performance including progress against
corporate priorities, risk management and budget provision. Appendix 1 set
out the current status of the 14 key Corporate Plan priorities and an update on
the key strategic risks.

It was reported that the Governance and Audit Committee had considered the
updated Corporate Risk Management Strategy and had approved the 2017/18
annual accounts at their meeting held on 30 July 2018. The external auditor,
Mazars, had reported their findings and had given an unqualified audit opinion,
without modification. The current spend against budget was summarised in
Appendix 2 and it was noted that there were currently no areas of concern to
report.

Resolved: That the report be noted.
Appointment of Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Managing Director on the
appointment of Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications.

Members noted the process which had been undertaken to recruit a Director
of Policy, Strategy and Communications and ratified the appointment of the
preferred candidate.

Resolved: That the recommendation of the Member Appointing Panel be
approved and Alan Reiss be appointed as Director of Policy, Strategy and
Communications, subject to receipt of satisfactory references.

Page 22



40.

41.

Legal Claim in Respect of Combined Authority Loans

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of Resources on a
legal claim in respect of Combined Authority loans.

The report provided information on the legal claim issued against Barclays
Bank PLC (Barclays) in respect of loans held by the Combined Authority and
the 2006 regulatory findings made against Barclays on the manipulation of
LIBOR (London Inter-bank Offered Rate).

A summary of the current position was provided in exempt Appendix 1 to the
submitted report and consideration was given to entering into a retainer with
Hausfeld LLP (Hausfeld) for legal representation including the provision of
legal and expert advice on the merits of the Combined Authority’s claim.

A progress report will be brought to the next meeting.

Resolved: That Hausfeld be instructed to provide legal representation to the
Combined Authority including detailed advice on the merits of the Combined
Authority’s claim.

Minutes for Information

(e) Draft Minutes of the West Yorkshire and York Investment
Committee held on 4 July 2018

Resolved: That the draft minutes of the West Yorkshire and York
Investment Committee held on 4 July 2018 be noted.

(f) Draft Minutes of the Transport Committee held on 6 July 2018

Resolved: That the draft minutes of the Transport Committee held on
6 July 2018 be noted.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

.
----------------------------------------

YEARS

There is a clear social gradient for LE and HLE for both males and females:

:0T wal| epuaby

MOST  _ ||Ft EXPECTANCY LEAST
Jlv) DEPRIVED YE?RS DEPRIVED
Q AREAS DIFFERENCE AREAS
?
MOST HEALTHY LiFe exPECTANCY, 20 LEAST
N DEPRIVED YEARS DEPRIVED
6] AREAS DIFFERENCE AREAS



A "life course” approach

There is overwhelming evidence for
prioritising preventative approaches.

It is more cost effective and easier to
prevent some issues that
that are often present in childhood than to

uNdoO them in adulthood.




Changing need

Projected population changes
2017-2037

+38% +75% +169%

-3%  +14%

P

The 'oldest old’, who have a A
substantial risk of requiring

There are around

440,200
EOPLE y

iving in
Kirklees

1222222222
1222222222
2222222222
222222

367

are aged

50+

long-term care, are the fastest
\growing age group in the UK.)

The way in which people
receive care is changing...

HOSPITAL IN-PATIENT
STAYS REDUCING

T
1 o

MORE PRIMARY AND
COMMUNITY CARE




Changing need

-~ Alzheimer's
s Disease
through a

life course

N O@® |
. I';:\:.\’-.:'?-\E{ _T"\i: e n S
CRUNSY Y ﬁ
OSSN

HEALTH
LITERACY

OBESITY

SOCIO-ECONOMIC
STATUS

COGNITIVE
STIMULATION

BIRTH
WEIGHT

8¢ abed




Carers

The community, families and carers provide key support to the health and care system.

e = £INHS
CARERS
Older people WITH NO or LOWER FREQUENCY
. CARING RESPONSIBILITIES A QU ARTER

of the older workforce
have some kind of

CARING

QUT N
1 ARE MORE LIKELY TO RESPONSIBILITIES
FEMALES FEEL IN (39%)
GOOD HEALTH 1 OUT] 0
& WORKING

CARERS
o & IVEWITHA PROVIDES
' MENTAL HEALTH
ouT CONDITION
1oF
MALES
AGED 50+ HAVE

€ARING

RESPONSIBILITIES
(@)

OF CARE
PER WEEK




Working in later life

Working later in life has benefits for individuals
and families, employers and wider society.

OF THOSE AGED 50+..
0
Employment status changes over the o e s 200 0 ;)uém 0
course of later life as people make @ sat-unpioyed of employees R 6(y
different, and sometimes non-traditional, g o e s A4
transitions from working to retirement. 250 sickjdfbabled
Age band

have a

MENTAL ¢&
HEALTH

CONDITION

Age-diverse teams offer benefits for
employers, including:

Problem .
. . Experlence
solving skills
| | | | | | | | | | |
e 1 e Greater
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% ©50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% Renﬂblllty ) .
iInnovation
— | . Knowledge
" . d Evidence shows that these PunCtua“ty sharing
Financial C_m :'\\ skills can improve people’s
te':‘:l'\l‘\()lt)gl'-'-“:I| > retirement savings and their Different
U skills will be work and health outcomes. . Professionalism
) . perspectives
g increasingly
D important as
w the population
o

qge&

32222222
Interpe.rsonul Mentoring
skills




Volunteering

A~/ improved quality of life; "Grandparenting” can...

-@:- improved life satisfaction; = AN
-4 L%_’I i)

oo improved ability to cope with ill health; w - @

~promote resilience
in later life

o

..help younger
generations remain
in employment

- in‘ . N
1—+ healthier lifestyles; foster a child's

$oe sense of wellbeing
$M1 improved family relationships;

)'; improved social networks; NATIONALLY:
QuUT QuUT
%} improved self-esteem; IOF4 IOF3
WORKING WORKING
FAMILIES MOTHERS
@ sense of pLI I'pCI'SE. ad e - ; S USE GRANDPARENTS FOR CHILDCARE
VJ - - 63%GRANDPARENTS
4 5 ﬂ/ with GRANDCHILDREN
(o]
aged I VOLUNTEER cit least monthly help out with
CHILDCARE

LEAST
DEPRIVED,

. ‘ TES OF OLDER

VOLU TEERIN F, are aready HIGHEST omong ADULTS

“’e O 0 06 060 O

..s0 encouraging and enabling more people to volunteer across the life course as well as in later life is an important contributor to ageing well.




Well-designed and accessible environments have a positive effect on
individual and community health and wellbeing and reduce isolation. &

9 3 % of older people

feel that their home is
SUITABLE for their NEEDS

HOUSING

4%
9 0 of older people 4%JE5

have access to a

Ar—ch have
- accessed
them during
the past 12
months

PARKOT
GREEN SPACE WTHNAMIE

The proportion of people living alone INCREASES WITH AGE:

]
g _
&
g
R e
o —]
&

v

feel safe
after dark

Sog

JIntergenerational
@ mixing g
) can reduce loneliness ' | é



Older people

The importance of being inclusive cannot be overestimated; ageist attitudes
harm older people as they lead to age-based discrimination.

n

EXPERIENCE KNOWLEDGE &  HERITAGE VOLUNTEERING CHILDCARE
INSIGHTS

P
111

]

CARING

ec abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Director of Public Health
Annual Report 2017/18

G¢ obed

G Kirklees

COUNCIL



Foreword

The aim of this report is to describe effective ways to help us
age as healthily as possible by highlighting some of the issues
we experience as we age that can impact on our health and
wellbeing and the kind of things we can do to tackle these
more effectively.

It focusses on the range of local assets that make a huge
contribution to families and communities by supporting people
to improve their outcomes, their wellbeing and their health.

Although it’s positive to see that a high number of
NT Kirklees’ older population feels socially included,
M \NG -~ 1in 4 experience feelings of loneliness and
“isolation at least some of the time.
The impact of intergenerational work in residential settings in reducing feelings of loneliness
amongst older people needs to be determined, to inform longer term planning decisions.

It is important to understand which groups are more likely to experience loneliness and
isolation at different life stages or following different life events and how local assets can help
to prevent this or reduce the impacts.

Spotting early signs and responding to distress is vital in preventing depression. Mental
health first aid is an evidence-based way of helping people do this, so supporting the
provision of training must be a priority.

_\_ED Older people are the largest users of health services,
\NG representing two thirds of NHS users. Four out of 10

\ON % adult admissions to hospital last year were people

NT N\N\ aged 65+.

Whllst many of these admissions and stays are entirely appropriate, better use of data and
intelligence can help ensure people stay out of hospital when being admitted will not
improwd their outcome.

Loné% GP appointments can help reduce avoidable hospital admissions of older people
cost-effectively.

Desig%ng social care provision in equal partnership with the people that use them (and
their carers) will inform the design and delivery of more effective services.

\,E People working together in their communities to
G EOP oo solve their problems and make the most of

NQR\%N\,\P O\ms? ¥ m opportunities is at the heart of the way in which
RO
610°

health and wellbeing outcomes are improved.

People with long-term conditions that feel able to manage their condition generally do better,
are more independent and use expensive acute services less.

Barriers, such as organisational bureaucracy and professional hierarchy, that prevent people
from working together need to be removed so that communities and organisations can
develop solutions together, engage people and build relationships based on trust to create
long-term, positive change.

Person-centred services and interventions need to be supported and commissioned,
enabling people to increase their confidence, achieve self-defined goals and maintain health
improving behaviour change.

It is not just about people being equipped to manage their health. People need
opportunities to learn and develop new skills throughout their lifetime, explore opportunities
for wider development, not just related to their current work role (e.g. gaining financial and
technological skills to generate retirement savings or improve work and health outcomes).

Working longer and volunteering throughout life meets a desire to help others, meets a
need to feel useful and valued, can help people make friends, and promotes enjoyment of
new activities.

The importance of being inclusive cannot
be overestimated; ageist attitudes harm older people

EQ\)\TYMM they lead to age-based discrimination.

Sensory impairment has a large impact on quality of life, access to social networks and
access to services, particularly for those facing additional language or communication
barriers. It's important to ensure these impacts are mitigated.

Finally, all organisations should embed the ‘Carers Charter’ and develop flexible working
policies (e.g. flexible working hours and home—office solutions to enable paid work alongside
unpaid care) to support people irrespective of their circumstances to work, and to work

healthier for longer.
P L
"—4' *\:r‘:\": p [ e o e T R |

e Rachel Spencer-Henshall,
Director of Public Health



Contents

7 Introduction 3

(oot | o F- L - VAPPSR 4

Outcomes- & asset-based appProaches. .. ... ... 5

Life course approaches in context: Oral Health.................... 6

Understanding diVErSItY ... .....cuiue e 7

Understanding iN@QUAILY. ..........ovuieii e 8
L]

Our Population 9
Overview and the changing population................ooiiiiiiiiii e, 9
Where older PeOPIE lIVE....... .. 10
o 7= 1 Y25 PP 11
LifE @XPECIANCY ... ettt 12
3Healthy People 13
Overview & life course context: ODESItY..........ovuiiieiiii 13

3.1 Healthy People: Health Issues

Kirklees Snapshot: Long-term Conditions..............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieee, 14
Kirklees Snapshot: Obesity & Mental Health..................cooiiiiii 15
Local Assets & Case Study: Desmond...........ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 16
3.2 Healthy People: Behaviours
Kirklees Snapshot: Being Active & Healthy...............coooiiiiiii, 17
Kirklees Snapshot: Unhealthy Behaviours...............cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiicieeee 18
Local Assets & Case Study: PALS.......cooiiiiii e 19
WAL NMEXE?.c. ettt e e e ettt e e sab bt e e e e e s sbbee e e e esbbeeeeesanns 20

‘

Care and Support

Overview & life course context: Alzheimer’'s Disease...........c.cocvviiiiiiiiiiiiiinnne. 21
4.1 Care and Support: Changing Need
kirklees Snapshot: Living with Additional Needs & Age-Related Impairments 22

Local Assets & Case Study: Museum in @ BOX..........couiuiiiuiiieiiiiieieieennnn, 23
@®.2 Care and Support: Carers

UXirklees Snapshot: Caring Responsibilities.............ccooveveiiiiiiiiieineene, 24

ocal Assets & Case Study: Carers CoUNt........ccovuiuiuieiiiiiiiiiiiiieiaeeaeenenn 25

LTAY 4P Ll a1 USSR 26

Good Communities 27

‘

Overview & life course context: Neighbourhoods.............c..cooiiiiiiii i, 27
5.1 Good Communities: Housing
Kirklees Snapshot: Housing Composition, Planning & Suitability................. 28
Local Assets & Case Study: Choose ‘N’ MOVe............covviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiennn, 29
5.2 Good Communities: Accessible Places
Kirklees Snapshot: Mobility, Facilities & Safety..............coocoeiiiiiiiiiininnn. 30
Local Assets & Case Study: Landscape Team.........cccouvvieiiiiiiiiiiniiaaaaanen. 31
5.3 Good Communities: Social Inclusion
Kirklees Snapshot: Cohesion, Inclusion & Connectedness......................... 32
Local Assets & Case Study: Walk With Us Project............cc.cooviiiiiiiiininne 33
WAL NMEXE?... ettt e e et e e e e sttt e e e enateeeeeeaannbbeaeesensbeeeeeeanns 34
0 Working Longer 35
Overview & life course context: Language & Communication.............c..ccceveennenne. 35
6.1 Working Longer: Employment and Retirement
Kirklees Snapshot: Employment Status............c.ooiiiiiiiiiicceceeee, 36
Local Assets & a focus on: Grandparenting..........ccoeeueriieneniniiiiienenannn, 37
6.2 Working Longer: Volunteering
Kirklees Snapshot: The Benefits of Volunteering.............c.cocoooiiiiiiiiinn. 38
Local Assets & Case Study: KMAG. ... 39
WWNEE NEXE? ...ttt ettt ettt nr e 40
References & ACKNOWIEAgMENTS. ........o.iuiuii e 41

k' This icon indicates a link to an external resource.

This icon indicates that more information can be
KJ . A|| found in our Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment.




Introduction

What data do we use to support local health and wellbeing?

Our Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) survey is an important source of local intelligence on adult health and wellbeing.
It is undertaken every four years and tells us things about:

* How people feel about their health FDR THE PURPO

* How confident people are in managing their health SE.S,‘ 0

«  Life satisfaction See Def A (pg 41) F THIS REPORT,

«  Emotional and mental wellbeing P&f B Q,
+ ResiliencePefC DER PEOPLE" OR = \<<

+ Social issues and behaviours “0\—

«  Similarities or differences between groups Pef D

&
AN

es betne . | - | &
It helps ensure that appropriate Public Health and Health and Social Care services are commissioned and helps us to monitor P\S
progress towards achieving outcomes. ARE CATEGOR\SED

In 2016, a random sample of 42,500 households across Kirklees received a postal questionnaire and links to an online version.

There were 8,132 valid responses; 3,868 of these were from people aged 50 or over.

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016

Snapshot m : How do older people feel locally?

More than half of people aged 50+ feel that ' [ [ [ '

they are in good health. Females and those )

who aren't socially isolated are more likely to 54% feel in GOOD health & 33%FAIR - 13%BAD,
feel in good health. Those in good health
feel much more confident managing their 59%
health than those who feel that their health is 51%
bad and most older people in Kirklees also

feel resilient and satisfied with life. 62%

28%, s

98% & 37% o ¢Socially isolated

in good health in bad health

T T

¢Females

¢Mdales

¢ Not socially isolated

2 QuUT

! c\‘-. A o O
o i o \!
D ° WCF a older people
® CONFIDENT > nave
@ managing @ HIGH LIFE
a4

THEIR OWN HEALTH SATISFACTION

1 Introduction 4

—




Why is an outcomes-based
approach important?
In Kirklees we have committed to using an Outcomes Based
Accountability™ (OBA) framework?. Using this approach we are clear that

the starting point for any planning process should be a clear statement of
what conditions of wellbeing are desired (the outcomes).

©

AR

The seven outcomes for Kirklees are:

Children Healthy Achievement
Children have the People in Kirklees are Peaople in Kirklees have
best start in life as well as possible aspiration and achieve their

for as long as possible ambitions through education,

training, employment
and lifelong learning

Q00

Safe & Cohesive Economic Clean & Green Independent
People in Kirklees live in Kirklees has sustainable People in Kirklees People in Kirklees
cohesive communities, feel economic growth and experience a high live independently
safe and are protected provides good employment quality, clean, and and have control over
from harm for and with communities green environment their lives

and businesses
Starting with outcomes enables us to step back from the things we are
already doing or commissioning and explore what needs to be done, by
whom and with whom to achieve improved outcomes for the citizens and
places of Kirklees and the people who use our services. If we achieve the
above outcomes in Kirklees we will know that people are ageing well.

This report contributes to the ‘story behind the baseline’ (using OBA
terminology) for several Kirklees outcomes and the indicators we will use to
measure our progress towards achieving them. It will also inform
discussions about what strategies, action plans and ‘calls to action’ are
required to achieve improved outcomes for older people and across the life
cougge. Alongside other local intelligence, much of which can be found in the
Kirl(gs Joint Strategic Assessment (KJSA), this report will support
Intef@¥ence-led commissioning for outcomes across Kirklees.

8 KJ[SA
IItI

1 Introduction

Why is an asset-based approa‘c'h important?

;/VA

O Kirklees
The contributions of older people to society include:

Caring fo
A

Vision for

adult social care

and support in
Kirklees

EXPERIENCE

An asset-based approach starts
with ‘what’s strong’ rather than
KNOWLEDGE & ‘what’s wrong’.

INSIGHTS

OR MORE
INFORMATION:

mama

VOLUNTEERING

People Helping People

The contribution of older people to
DCARE Society is often overlooked and
there are still-prevailing negative
stereotypes related to being older.
It is vital to build on the assets of
individuals and communities,
including those in later life.

These contributions can only be
ensured if we foster people’s
health and participation as they
age, through environments which
promote accessibility, equity,
safety, security and support age-
friendly environments.

CARING

HERITAGE


https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/adult-social-care-vision-kirklees.pdf
http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna
http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/kirklees_overview
http://intranet.kirklees.gov.uk/http:/observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/people_helping_people

Why is a life course approach important?

Areas of action

| Sustainable communities and places ‘

Life course epidemiology is the study of long-term biological, behavioural and social processes that link health in
later life to physical or social exposures during gestation, childhood, adolescence, adult life or across generations. | Healthy Standard of Living |
There is a growing body of evidence which indicates that certain experiences during the early part of the life course [ Eaty Yoars | [ SkilsDevelopment | [ Employment and Work | '

can influence a person’s health throughout their life and into old age®.

As Marmot highlighted, one of the primary purposes of taking action across the life course is to affect the ways in
which socially determined influences impact on the individual with the aim of maximising the positive effects and
minimising the negative effects.

(&<
What a child experiences during the early years (starting in the womb), including their physical, social, and o
cognitive development, lays down a foundation for the whole of their life, strongly influences their school-readiness
and educational attainment leading to economic participation and long-term health. Later interventions, although
important, are considerably less effective where good early foundations are lacking®.

(e

Accumulation of positivéf and negative
effects on health and wgllbeing

There is overwhelming evidence on the increasing costs of an ageing population which provides a strong argument | Pronatal | PreSchool [ School Uy Employment | Refirement

for prioritising preventative approaches. It is more cost effective and easier to prevent some issues that are often Family Building \
present in childhood than to undo them in adulthood. )
Life course stages

Source: Action across the life course, Marmot Review, 2010

Oral health has recently been highlighted as a major global
public health priority; a number of health conditions have been
scientifically linked with gum disease and poor oral health.

In adults and older
people, tooth loss
can severely
restrict dietary
intake, particularly
fresh fruits and
vegetables ™.

Dental caries and periodontal diseases are both highly prevalent
and largely preventable chronic conditions which can affect
individuals across the life course, from early childhood to old

5
age®.

through a
life course

i lens

Impact upon aesthetics/
reduced self-esteem.

Poor oral hygiene
and periodontal
disease are risk

factors for

Monetary and pneumonia and
time costs. adversely affect

diabetes outcomes.

In 2010, untreated caries was the most prevalent condition
worldwide, affecting 35% of the global population, and oral

diseases accounted for 15 million disability adjusted life years
worldwide®.

Dental care accounts for 5 - 10% of total healthcare expenditure
and dental caries is the fourth most expensive disease to treat”.

Time off school.

@ Decay in baby teeth can lead to QQQ
misaligned, unhealthy and Q
malformed adult teeth. EvD

1 Introduction 6



Why is understanding diversity important?

Inclusion and diversity

There is no agreed definition of ‘later life’. Some
people may define themselves as ‘older’ in their
50’s and for others this may be much later.
Traditionally health and social care services for
‘older people’ have begun at 65 years. In reality,
there is wide variation in when people begin to ‘feel
old’ and define themselves as ‘old’. At the age of 50
years, some people may plan seriously for
retirement, take early retirement through choice or
find it difficult to secure employment. Others may
continue to work late into their 60s and beyond —
there is no compulsory retirement age.

Clearly not all older people are the same! The
diversity of older people applies not only to their
employment status but to their family
circumstances and responsibilities. “The squeezed
middle’ or ‘middle aged jugglers’ are terms
sometimes used to describe people in their 50s
who have caring responsibilities for elderly parents
as well as their own parenting responsibilities.
Significant life events such as divorce,
bereavement and becoming a grandparent have
enormous implications for the health, wellbeing and
economic status of adults which impact on later life.
People’s levels of self-esteem, motivation levels
and personal resilience are shaped across their life
course by experiences and events. Some people
have the ability to bounce back from adverse
events and others do not. Resilience, mental
wellness, social support and inclusion all impact on
how well we age.

People aged 50+ now are the last generation to
have@xperienced most of their lives without digital
techmplogy; and some people are more adaptable
thatQthers. Likewise, there is enormous variation
in IKRls of health literacy.

N
|_\

1 Introduction

Ethnicity and Culture

Kirklees is a thriving and diverse area; 22% of people in North Kirklees and 9% of people in South
Kirklees are of South Asian ethnicity and the ethnic profile of Kirklees continues to change®. There
are cultural trends and traditions, lifestyles, habits, histories, behaviours, activities, genetic
predispositions across the life course which can impact on health and wellbeing. These include
breastfeeding and weaning in infancy; language and literacy; access to skills and education;
cultural and social norms and attitudes towards physical activity, sex, drinking, smoking and drugs.
It is important to understand the intricacies of different cultures because interventions which might
be suitable for one group may be inappropriate for another.

CULTURAL Fatima Khan-Shah
I N S I G H T Greater Huddersfield CCG
Public and patient engagement

& involvement professional
specialising in health, socia
care and education

British Pakistanis are the second largest ethnic group within Kirklees. Our
relationship with food is complex and something that has been emotionally
embedded in our community for generations. For many, in what can feel like a
grey, cold and dreary environment, it is their only link to their homeland. This,
along with the added complication of sedentary routines compared to the lifestyles
in their countries of birth, can be a recipe for disaster for health and wellbeing.

A perception in the Asian sub-continent was that those who were overweight were
wealthy as they could afford more luxurious food items and sweets. It can also be
a sign of prestige to not have the responsibility to work either in or outside of the
home. As a result, there is a culture here in Kirklees where the elders in homes
quite often have a sedentary lifestyle due it being culturally acceptable. It would
be frowned upon by the community if a mother-in-law was cleaning when her
daughter-in-law is around to do it for them.

For many conservative women of the Hindu, Sikh or Muslim faiths, exercising in an unsegregated gym is not an
option. For some, it is perceived as both culturally and religiously inappropriate. There is a perception amongst
some communities that women seen walking in a park, for example, may be challenged with questions of ‘what
are you doing here?’ with a subtext of ‘shouldn’t you be at home doing something?’

Taking ownership of one’s health and wellbeing is accepted by some and not by others who sometimes use their
ill-health for attention and sympathy which can lead to relatives trying to ‘out-do’ each other. This peer pressure
does have a positive side though; if someone is trying out a new approach to improving their health, others want
to give it a go. This approach could be utilised with some culturally tailored health management strategies.



Why is understanding inequality important?

Health inequalities have many dimensions (including age, gender, ethnicity and the other - - .
‘protected characteristics’ defined in legislation). Socio-economic inequalities are at the How dO Wwe measure relatlve deprlvatlon?
root of health inequalities (the ‘causes of the causes’) across the world.

The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 is the official measure of
Locally, we use the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) to monitor and understand socio- relative deprivation for neighbourhoods in England based upon 7 domains:
economic inequalitieslo. For all key indicators of health and wellbeing there exists a clear

‘social gradient’ — people who are better off experience better health and wellbeing across
the life course than those who are worse off.

For the purposes of this report, significant inequalities will be represented with the group
experiencing the best outcome on the left and the group experiencing the worst outcome
on the right:

LEAST DEPRIVED 80- 100%

60-80% \mp quintiles are calculated by ranking

each of the 32,844 neighbourhoods “‘ i Bt
40-60%  from least to most deprived and
EXAMPLE 20-40% dividing them into five equal groups... MM \éL L

in later life

““My health is good

MOST DEPRIVED 0-20% m:’z- - l
Snapshot m - |
] i 20.000 Urban Area ; m /W::ry
There are @ . /L " L D..,Mm.
SOCIALGRADIENTS =l N,
38% 7T e O 1 A

| have high life @ @ Pig ;

satisfaction At

| feel resilientdd @

,Newm wmm" o
//c sland Moo and Netharton
o
o,
Ny SO 4
\
Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016

Source: GP registered population data, January 2015

2 obed

1 Introduction



Our Population 2

There are around There are around There are around There are around There are around There are around
440200 6%, 24300 46300 33800 16000 5200
) 1222222222 0 people in their... people in their... people in their... people in their... people in their...

PEOPLE ) areaged)) 593 693 793 898 90

L] [ ] L
living in
+ S
° They make up They make up They make up They make up They make up
Kirklees o ; ; o :

of the total population of the total population of the total population of the total population of the total population
. . . R R N N N N N A A A N AN AR A AR A R A R R R R R R AR AR AR AR AN NN AR AR EEREEREEREEEE,
HOW IS the pOPUIatlon Chang"‘g? Latest population projections for 2037 suggest:
. ~_
: |-Cl,l'9,93t ) 7] No overall increase gz N
. : population increases in ‘W/’%},ﬂ in the number of people DEPENDENCY
Projected changes over the next 20 years (2017-2037): . youngest and oldest 7 ag ed 18-64 YBGI'S i RATIO
age groups =
'3% +1 4 % +38% +7 5% +169% H (more people too young/'too old’ to work relative to ‘working age’ people) \Igllg_lli_

60,000

In 2017: In 2037:

145y yy 175mE0
: SUPPORTED BY SUPPORTED BY
- 10085R6% <F 10 QPEQPLE OF

50,000

+12900

40,000

30,000

20,000

WORKING AGE WORKING AGE

10,000

As children and older people tend to use health and social care services more than
those of working age, demands on services are likely to increase while the burden
of revenue generation falls on a relatively smaller proportion of the overall population.

Source: ONS Subnational Population Projections, 2014-bhased

o 5 0 o2 o

]

() Y\
il Ii-

2 Our Population 9

2



iva?
Where do older people live~ Aged 16-64 Aged 65+

% population within each LSOA __ % population within each LSOA

Working age people tend to live L TEs -
closer to urban areas and older . Wes oo
people tend to live in more rural
parts of Kirklees.

Source: GP registered population data at ONS Lower Super Output Area (LSOA), 2015

[The number in brackets is a count of the LSOAs in each category]

Source: Ordnance Survey, 2016

have higher
.but whilst a smaller proportion of people in rural areas than urban areas experience a
W E A average
W

A %, poor quality of life, those who suffer from loneliness or isolation may experience it more
wellbeing___ ",(Pc' acutely because of the reduced accessibility of local facilities and transport connections.

el

.tend to:
= belessdeprived

Population

g‘o_é'\dve lower crime rates

Increased engagement in heritage activities

and use of green space are associated
& have more accessible green space with lower inequality in life satisfaction.
NN

& have better air quality

2 Our Population

10


http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/population
http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/kirklees_overview

Deaths in Kirklees Circulato
Cancer & Circulatory

& . ) cause more than half of all deaths
Deaths by underlying cause .
: ? Behavioural
Kirklees 2014-2016 (665) Disedse 8\ DIy B
are the next most common
PNEUMONIA
23 FORMOBE
CORONARY J s
HONCeo0) HEART DISEASE M
(808) 2 Y
CHRONIC OBSTRUCTIVE HEART ATTACK Deaths in five-year age bands
PULMON(A‘\SI;B{)DISEASE (535) Y N e o death
g5+ ale
/-_\ 75-79 ‘
Many of these diseases 65-69 |
have known risk factors 55-59 |
associated with 45-49 ‘
unhealthy behaviours, |
such as: 35-39
25-29
15-19
5-9
/J\ﬁ;ﬁ A~ /J\‘ﬁ\ /J\,i‘ Under 1
LACK OF EXCESSIVE 100% 50% 0% 50% 100%
Pg”" sl PHYSICAL ACTIVITY ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION smokingtt = Circulatory
Q.S N — N = Respiratory
D Cancer
MANY OF THESE DEATHS ARE THEREFORE PREVENTABLE m External causes
\ o1 ) == Other (including Dementicr)

Source: Primary Care Mortality Database
2 Our Population 11


http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/specific-conditions/cancer

Are we ageing well?

Life expectancy at birth in Kirklees has increased over the last ten years but, in line with the national trend, this increase has
slowed more recently. Healthy life expectancy (HLE: the number of years that people may expect to live in good health) is an . .
important ‘ageing well” indicator. Unfortunately, for many people, living longer can mean more years of poor health. QHEALTHY LIFE EXPECTANCY AT BIRTH =

»
g
NN NSNS NN NSNS NN NSNS NN SN EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE \d

’

[ ]
Female Hi g has

declined g i
” gh
recent yéjg ,Fs'y in

CLICK FOR
MORE LOCAL
INFORMATION
ABOUT LIFE
| EXPECTANCY

There is a clear social gradient for LE and HLE for both males and females:

HLE shows a steeper social gradient, with those
mv) MOST LIFE EXPECTANCY, 8 DEIEEE‘;ED from the least deprived areas of Kirklees living
QD D IZFI;I?XSED EIFEEAR‘SEE AREAS almost 20 years longer in good health than
(@] those from the most deprived areas.

®
I~ MOST HEALTHY LIFE ExPECTANCY, 20 LEAST
o DEPRIVED YEARS DEPRIVED

AREAS DIFFERENCE AREAS

Source: Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF)
2 Our Population 12


http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/Custom/Uploads/Fig6_Life_expectancy_ward_updated_2017.png

Healthy People

A quarter of
those aged 50+
don't take
prescription
medication

The number of people with diseases will double over the next 20 years and the number of
people with more than one long-term condition is growing rapidly. The number of people with
health and social care needs will also continue to increase unless we enable them to age well.

Over half of those and around
Healthy behaviours including not smoking, moderate alcohol consumption, good nutrition, aged 50+ take 3 \, " ouT
. L T . or more regular 1 5
physical activity and safe sex have a positive effect on health. While the health of younger prescription fOF
IS EALIT Q9 People tends to be less immediately affected by their behaviour, occupation or wealth, ' medications.. orhese
unhealthy behaviours in youth and early adulthood significantly determine a person’s health in medlication
later life so prevention and early intervention throughout the life course is vital. 1?\2‘;5:?:'1::

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2076

A life course perspective can increase our
understanding of childhood obesity. There is now
strong evidence that pre-natal and early-life factors
are involved in the development of childhood
obesity, and that obesity often begins early in life.
Furthermore, despite some interventions with
established effectiveness, adult obesity has proved
very difficult to treat, emphasising the need for
early preventative intervention.

e
Obesity

_.through'a
life course
lens

o

Overweight and
obesity in childhood
and adolescence have
adverse consequences
on premature mortality
and physical moiliidity

Obese people are
less likely to be in

Research has now identified potentially sensitive employment than in adulthood
periods spanning the entire life course. Early people of aht:ealthy
weight.

Weight bias increases
vulnerability to
depression, poor body
image, maladaptive
eating behaviours.

childhood and adolescence in particular are
emerging as important periods for the
establishment of obesity. There are several
implications of experiencing overweight or obesity
during childhood upon later adult physical and
mental health®.

Research overwhelmingly
indicates that, despite
some movement between
weight categories,
children who become

overweight or obese are -l.
likely to remain <
overweight or obese. € *« 2
« T

Lower general
health scores,
more GP visits
and more school
absenteeism.

Determinants of childhood obesity
include maternal smoking, no or
short duration of breastfeeding and
obesity in infancy.

13

3 Healthy People



Snapshot

Long-term conditions (LTCs) Pef E are
more prevalent in older people and in
more deprived groups. People with
long-term conditions now account for
about half of all GP appointments and
about three-quarters of inpatient bed

days.1?

A LTC doesn’t necessarily mean living
in poor health, but the presence of
multiple LTCs can significantly affect
how people feel about their health and
their confidence in managing it.

Deprivation, ethnicity and gender are all
linked with the prevalence of LTCs such
as diabetes and cardiovascular disease.

14% &

of older peopl'e have

DIABETES

compared to...
4 5/, OF THOSE UNDER 50

- »
38% &
of older people have a
CAR%'I})VASCULAR CONDITION

Q compared to...
z% OF THOSE UNDER 50

0o

3.1 Healthy People: Health Issues

m . Living with Long-term Conditions

-———

T o\ > LTCs are associated with:
\ .
I/ 8 4 /0 \\ ‘whcthcr people feel that their health is good; {Q_oiwhether people feel confident managing their health

of older people |
are livingwitha 1, -=<=~ 3+LTCs 2LTCs 0LTCs
1 7

\ k/ \\

N LTC , I’comparedto‘\
e

o4 66% |

T \

1
I
|
\

of those /

! \ under50 /
1 ~ <

1 e
1

[LTC = Long-term Condition]

\J‘EIHITE A significantly higher rate
HNICITY 57%4ASIAN of 3+ LTCs is observed
v inthose of ASIAN ethnicity

o anNd those living in the
514,: MOST DEPRIVED areds

L 2 4

L 2= 4

OLDER
GROUPS

are significantly

BY THESE & v 2 v

CONDITIONS DIABETES CARDIOVASCULAR CONDITION

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
14



Snapshot

i Just over
ouT

16r
people
aged 50+
are of a

HEALTHY
. WEIGHT

O | @
35% } 39%

NI HEALTHY
WEIGHT

m . Obesity & Mental Health

Good physical health significantly increases the likelihood of good

mental health, and vice versa. 80% of obese Pef F patients have never

discussed their weight with their GP13 and twice as many deaths are
due to inactivity than are due to obesity on its own.2* There is an
overlap between long-term conditions and mental health problems

which can affect outcomes and the cost of treatment. Services are not
currently meeting existing levels of demand of those with diagnosable

mental health problems.

OVERWEIGHT OBESE

CERTAIN

OLDER
GROUPS

are significantly
LESS likely to

7
2
@,
ETHNPELTY

Y
be affected by OBESITY

@ WHITE
ETHNICITY

OBESITY in later life is linked
with several negative health

and social outcomes.
Those who dre obese are..

MORE likely to have
MULTIPLE LTCs..
3+LTCs

& LESS likely to feel

N GOOD HEALTH

'MENTAL HEALTH CONDITIONS in later life’

older people
report a MENTAL HEALTH

38% CONDITION

of older people who COMPAREDIO o
103
oraf

report a mental health
OF THOSE UNDER 50

condition are accessing
mental health services

Males and those who live in the
least deprived areas are less likely
to report a mental health condition

) 3

ARE ASSOCIATED WITH
HOW PEOPLE FEEL ABOUT
THEIR HEALTH:

MENTAL

HEALTH
DITION

Z
o

M AL
HEETH
C I'NON
““My h i
y health is good

| feel confident 0
managing my health 92%

[
o
3

| feel resilient Ad

3.1 Healthy People: Health Issues

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
15



C A S E IIM D dll
STU DY Male, ag';d Gi,s I\'f?rt%';‘(irklees

The client was referred to the scheme by the diabetes DESMOND group. He is a full time carer for his
father and the only activity he did prior to joining the scheme was some gardening and local walking. He
had never been to a sports centre before and never attended a class.

Assets

thriving
kirklees

BMI: 35.3
BP: 130/81
January 2016 March 2016
The client’s goal was weight In 10 weeks he lost 1 and a half
loss, to improve his general stones and invested in a home gym ‘
fitness and to control his (bike and weights), changed his
diabetes. eating habits, went for longer walks

with a walking group and attended
a specialist PALS class every week.

¥,
My Health Tools

A guided journey through sell-care

................. * _______________ BMI: 27.8 *

BP: 104/64

December 2016 June 2016
_ By the end of the scheme he By week 25, he had lost another
ee achieved a total weight loss of 3 stone and started doing an extra
e aith and half stones and his blood walk, joined a yoga class, been
rainers sugar level had also dropped. walking in the Dales and found a
lady friend to accompany him!

“| feel like a new man! My clothes | have not worn for years now fit me. | feel confident, full of
energy and want to do more and not stop. PALS and its classes have changed my life. | never
thought | could achieve such good results!”

“Mr Desmond”

The

Wellness
Service

3.1 Healthy People: Health Issues

16


https://www.thrivingkirklees.org.uk/
http://www.desmond-project.org.uk/locationmap_getcontent.php?iid=205
https://www.myhealthtools.uk/#/
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/health-and-well-being/health-trainers.aspx
https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/delivering-services/pdf/health-strategy.pdf

Snapshot

Although reported levels of physical
activity are rising and levels of
smoking are declining slightly, rates of
obesity are predicted to continue to
rise. The rates are higher in more
disadvantaged groups. Certain
lifestyle choices present a threat to
population health as they significantly
increase the risk of chronic disease,
including cancer, and reduce life

expectancy.

> 0
P

- 13%
INACTIVE

HOW MUCH

PHYSICAL
ACTIVITY

DO PEOPLE
AGED 50+
ACHIEVE?

39%
RECOMMENDED
LEVEL

G abed

. (qu,a\ﬁg for at least 10 minutes, for either travel or leisure)

3.2 Healthy People: Behaviours

“ >

m : Being Active & Healthy

pireeedl
i i

to eat 5+ portions of
fruit and veg per day

Females are more likely to feel confident...

. 82%‘%

A

Those who feel CONFIDENT to cook are much more

likely to prepare a meal from scratch at least weekly...

160—O%
BASIC INGREDIENTS

Older malnourished people are twice as likely to visit their GP, have more
hospital admissions, stay in hospital longer, and have more ill health.1®

867%

of people
aged 50+

are CONFIDENT to

Older females (1=

are less likely to eat
TAKEAWAY food U

WEEKLY

AO—)

older people
feel that...

The RECOMMENDED LEVEL of physical
activity is 150 minutes of moderate
aerobic activity per week

(which is around 30 minutes per day)

(@) O

KEEPING PHYSICALLY ACTIVE

X
is important

‘.

:in planning for a *,
:long and healthy ,*

0

retirement o

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
17



m : Unhealthy Behaviours

LEAST
DEPRIVED,
o,
@
compared to...

[ | [ | |
18% of under-50s 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Snapshot

"Intention to quit DECREASES WITH AGE:
$
Thereis a & |

SOCIAL

Smoking prevalence is lower
amongst those aged 50+ but a
social gradient spans the life
course; four times as many
older people living in the most
deprived areas smoke
compared to those living in the
least deprived areas. As
smokers age, their intention to
quit becomes much lower.

GRADIENT

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

People aged 50+—| CERTAIN

. ho drink ivel :
drink el OLDER
MORE under-50s to be : GROUPS
CONCERNED ABOUT : are significantly
THAN | THEIR ?que. : LESS likely to

THAN . EXCEED

limits SAFE
UNHEALTHY BEHAVIOURS  out of every 10 older people in Kirklees..

oged compared to...
: LIMITS
0000 mmitirme
of ger people have used of]under-EOs wo w w w-| w w wz w w F

A higher proportion of older q
people drink alcohol in excess -

of the recommended weekly (0)

limit (15+ units) compared to the 21 /0
under-50s. They also tenq to be of those
less concerned about their
drinking habits.

STOE S 14 % of under-50s

ille r recreational drugs
ngothe last 5 years 9 POOR v sMoKING _DRINKING  TAKING UNHEALTHY  UNHEALTHY  UNHEALTHY  UNHEALTHY
(Sll DIET ACTIVITY EXCESSIVELY DRUGS BEHAVIOURS BEHAVIOUR BEHAVIOURS BEHAVIOURS

N

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
3.2 Healthy People: Behaviours 18



Assets

\-/'
vvvvvv ACTVITY &
LG YoM

0
B 3

LverybodyActive

Kirklees

®
' Project

e

T
jab)
«Q
®
o1
w

3.2 Healthy People: Behaviours

gﬁJSDE ‘ ‘ "Mrs PALS"

On beginning the scheme Mrs PALS felt lost and she described
herself as being ‘beige’. Daily pain was consuming her and any

social activity was avoided as much as possible; it was easier to
hide away. 1
‘ At her initial consultation, Mrs PALS rated her self-esteem and d
physical health as poor and reported that she only got out of the —
house once a week. Together with her PALS officer, an action .
: - plan of attending Agua Med each week was agreed.

Apprehensively Mrs PALS gave her action plan a go and

attended Aqua Med and much to her surprise enjoyed it. She
f could move with ease in the water and found the other
participants friendly. By the time Mrs PALS attended her first
review consultation she had begun attending Aqua Med three
times each week and was keen to continue.

At her second review she had progressed to
attending Aqua Fit classes and had begun
walking more. After being shown around the
facilities at The Stadium, Mrs PALS decided
to join as a full KAL member.

At her final consultation, Mrs PALS rated her
self-esteem and physical health as above
average and reported socialising at least five
days a week. Mrs PALS became emotional
when recalling her progress and reflecting on
how much happier she felt. She noted that
at the weekend she had complained about
being out of breath after rushing back to the
car with her daughter to avoid a parking fine.
Her daughter laughed and commented: "you
wouldn't have been able to get back to the
car like that a year ago!”.

Although Mrs PALS still experiences some
joint pain, it is much more manageable. Her
life is no longer beige, it is full of colour.

19


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/food-exercise-and-sport/pals.aspx
https://www.everybodyactive.org.uk/#/
https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/public-health-partners/kirklees-food-initiatives-nutrition-education.aspx
http://kirklees.yorkshiresmokefree.nhs.uk/

What next?

\W
VR

3 Healthy People

Insight...

The impact of intergenerational work on reducing loneliness amongst older people in
residential settings, for example, bringing services such as nurseries, youth clubs, and
care homes under the same roof.

What older people need to know and do to maintain their sexual health and how local
services and assets can enable this.

Explore motivations to improve NHS Health Check uptake, particularly amongst black
and minority ethnic (BME) communities and people from poorer backgrounds.

Factors linked to lower levels of wellbeing and personal resilience amongst people in

their fifties to aid implementation of preventive action in the workplace and communities.

Older people who are less visible within communities and may be at risk of developing
depression.

The most effective approaches and local assets to enable people from BME
communities to feel confident managing their health and long-term conditions.

The health behaviours of different groups of older people and what works to promote
and maintain behaviour change.

Where there are poor levels of health literacy.

Action...

Holistic approaches to the family, the environment, the community and the society into
which a child is born and raised.

Support and build on existing networks and provision to prevent dementia and improve
the lives of people living with dementia, their families and carers.

Work collaboratively to enable people to access fresh, affordable healthy food and
maintain healthy eating and moderate alcohol consumption.

Support and commission services and interventions that are person-centred and insight-
driven, enabling people to increase their confidence, achieve self-defined goals and
maintain behaviour change.

Enable longer GP appointments to reduce avoidable hospital admissions among older
patients cost-effectively.

Adopt integrated approaches to physical and mental health to protect the mental health
of people living with long-term conditions.

Doctors to take a lead role in promoting the benefits of regular physical activity.

Ensure older people have access to services such as addiction or sexual health
services, traditionally associated with younger people.

Promote holistic definitions of health which include mental as well as physical health.
Support provision of mental health first aid training.

Improve access to support for mental health problems which often underpin poor health
behaviours). Services are not currently meeting existing levels of demand.

Address poor health literacy to increase levels of knowledge, understanding and
confidence around health issues and health behaviours.

Address loneliness to protect the mental health of older people (e.g. by signposting to
local social activity services).

Build on and support local assets to reduce social isolation (e.g. through social
prescribing, improving connections between networks and enabling timely and reliable
information about local assets to be readily available). 20



Care and Support

As well as an increase in the amount of ill health, population ageing will mean a greater
prevalence of age-related conditions. The ‘oldest old’, who have a substantial risk of requiring
long-term care, are the fastest growing age group in the UK.

Changin
Negd -

Over the last 20 years, the management of chronic disease has moved from secondary care to
primary and community care, with older people receiving the majority of their personal care
from family and other unpaid carers. The way in which people receive care is changing.
Traditional hospital in-patient stays are reducing, and more management of long term
conditions is possible in the community.

Alzheimer’s disease is the most common
cause of dementia and, with an ageing
population, prevalence is increasing yearly.
Alzheimer’s is not determined in any single
time period but results in the complex
interplay between genetic and
environmental exposures throughout the
life course.

- Alzheimer's
@ Disease

.through a
life course

g@%%fx’lens

Health literacy
throughout the life
course facilitates the
recognition of
symptoms in later life
and timely diagnosis

Being obese in
mid-life doubles

A healthy lifestyle can help reduce the risk

of Alzheimer’s disease and other the risk of and care. 1819
dementias. It has been estimated that up to fevElonid
half th £ Alzhei 's di Low socioeconomic status dementia at a

alf t e_ cases O zheimer’'s disease (SES) in parents may lead  later age, but the
worldwide may be the result of seven key tosa ssimilahrly Io¥~fr attained b':,i%ﬁ’;::'n:k
modifiable risk factors: diabetes, high I e oTeprInd: . between remain

: - S e A4S which in turn may lead to

blood pressure, obesity, smoking, higher risk of suboptimal adult SES - a unknown.

) . risk factor for Alzheimer’s.
developing dementia

than non-smokers.
Exposure to second-
hand smoke (passive
smoking) may also
increase the risk of
dementia.

depression, cognitive inactivity or low
education, and physical inactivity.

Cognitive stimulation
throughout the life
course, especially during
the sensitive period in
early life, influences .
dementia risk. N\

Risk factors for developing
Alzheimer’s include
intrauterine environment
and birth weight.

4 Care and Support


https://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/specific-conditions/dementia
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-dementia-needs-assessment.pdf

Snapshot

Dependency is associated with higher health and social care costs so it is important that
people live as well as they can for as long as they can. Older people are the largest users
of health services, representing two thirds of NHS users. 41% of all admissions to

hospitals last year were people aged 65+.1°

60%

40%

27%

20%

14% 14%

M% M%

6%

0%

VISUAL

IMPAIRMENTS

¢

-I- 70s 180s+

@&, HeARING

IMPAIRMENTS

53%

24%

14%

N% M%

! 70s |80s+

9%

m . Living with Additional Needs & Age-Related Impairments

The risk of frailty increases with age and, in those aged 65 and over, lower socio-economic
status is associated with more physical, psychological, cognitive and overall frailty.
Between a quarter and a half of people over 85 are estimated to be frail, which is
associated with disability and crisis admissions to hospital.2® Dementia is also becoming a
critically important issue in terms of both the high personal and social costs related to the
disease and the wider impact on other parts of the health and care system.

20% 21%

15% l

34%

26%
70s |80s+

MEMORY

IMPAIRMENTS

Older people WITHOUT SENSORY or COGNITIVE IMPAIRMENTS

ARE MORE LIKELY TO:

..AND LESS LIKELY TO:

FEEL IN
GOOD HEALTH

FEEL

% @ @ LIVE WITH A
MENTAL HEALTH
DEPENDENT CONDITION

RESILIENT

@
i@

compared to those WITH SENSORY or COGNITIVE IMPAIRMENTS

4.1 Care and Support: Changing Need

3 QU
O
older people

who have
fallen

" FALLS

£10...
BROKEN A BONE

as aresult

DEPENDENCY
SUCH AS
REQUIRING

HELP WITH
FUNDAMENTAL

. TASKS LIKE:
f_WASHING ?f

EATING Tl TOILETING

9%

DRESSING

., 5% 5% 5%
%

3
60s | 70s |80s+

DEPENDENCY

is qssocmted with lower
mental and emotional
wellbeing

of those living
independently
low wellbeing scgres..

~compared to

who are depen

27%

9% 9%

6%

h

QuT who need
90F .I 0 support say

older People they receive it

i

NEED FOR

SUPPORT

to remain in their
own home

e
pned

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016

22



Assets

theBett 4

feel good, do more W

&

Kirkwood

0. 0,.
‘.‘ ® End of Life Care
%, End of Life Care Admiral Nurse

*

L
The share + care Grop € 3

MakingSpace

Kirklees,
Dementia
Hub ;

CREATE SPACE

PROMOTING POSITIVE MENTAL HEALTH

& creative arts

S [ 1]
. -
v, ’ Kcnmmumtylmks
: .’ . inspiring hope
a o ‘0 inspiring change
* o 0

‘$

(00 'S%
Ko (’////‘(’

4.1 Care and Support: Changing Need

LR 4
*
* o0 /D Kirklees Advocacy Service:
* .
* .

CASE Museum in a Box
STU DY Supporting people through reminiscence
The ‘Museum in a Box’ project was developed nine years ago and now consists of 20 boxes

(which are available for groups and organisations to borrow for free) on a variety of themes
including school days, kitchen and washday, textile mills and rugby league.

Each box contains a range of 20 multi-sensory objects to help stimulate discussion, including
tactile objects that can be handled, photographs, CDs and smells from bygone times. The
themed objects and resources help to rekindle memories, encourage conversations, boost self-
esteem and can offer support at a time of change. Over 90 box loans took place during January
to June 2017, from 24 different organisations include care homes, hospitals, charities, agencies
and community groups.

Kirklees Museums and Galleries have recently commissioned The Audience Agency to
undertake an evaluation of the health and wellbeing impacts of the Museum in a Box scheme.
Nine organisations that have used the boxes on a regular basis over the last year were
surveyed. These organisations are using the boxes to supporting a range of service users
including the elderly, people living with dementia and their families, people with long term health
conditions, limited mobility and people with learning difficulties. Of those organisations surveyed:
« All strongly agreed that service users have enjoyed reminiscing/engaging with their personal
history through using the boxes.
« All strongly agreed/agreed that Museum in a Box resources and sessions have enabled
service users to improve their social interaction with others (e.g. care staff, family, other

service users/participants).
Some of the benefits of using this scheme which ‘\L
were expressed in the survey included:
“Some residents really look forward to the
sessions. Improves confidence and self-esteem
as they realise how much they know.
Creates laughter and positive feelings.”
“Some residents who do not communicate
much seem to come alive when we start to do the
reminiscence session.”
“Increases feelings of happiness and creates
a '‘buzz’”
The multi-sensory nature of the boxes are key
to their success. One survey user commented:
“The variety of items, including tactile items,

smells, music etc. all work on the brain in
different ways to invoke memories.”

23


http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiExPyczuTaAhUDPFAKHSpsBKkQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/case-studies/out-blue-oob&psig=AOvVaw3-5c0U9lx6QumIwGYzKmFD&ust=1525267457955179
https://www.facebook.com/KirkleesMuseums/
https://www.makingspace.co.uk/
https://www.dementiaaction.org.uk/
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiA5o7JzuTaAhUOfFAKHegLBg4QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://stores.ebay.co.uk/Kirkwood-Hospice&psig=AOvVaw2qgbuPQgpzlb6GLyMqtfVY&ust=1525267547062552
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiA5o7JzuTaAhUOfFAKHegLBg4QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://stores.ebay.co.uk/Kirkwood-Hospice&psig=AOvVaw2qgbuPQgpzlb6GLyMqtfVY&ust=1525267547062552
https://www.commlinks.co.uk/services/kirklees/kirklees-dementia-hub/
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiaqquEzuTaAhUEYlAKHc0aBFoQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.ageuk.org.uk/calderdaleandkirklees/services-1/dementia-support/&psig=AOvVaw07piHTGD9BDfWiwtZfvFDM&ust=1525267401808527

Snapshot

The changing health demands of the UK population will affect
the provision of health and care over the next decade. The
community, families and unpaid carers are a vital part of the
health and care system and are integral to future success.
Increasing community capacity and capability is central to
enabling people to live more independently. Nationally, the
value of unpaid support by carers roughly matches the cost of

the NHS.

Unpaid carers face a number of challenges and supporting
them to balance other competing responsibilities, particularly

m : Caring Responsibilities

15%
OF OLDER
PEOPLE

WHC PROVIDE

Older people WITH NO or LOWER FREQUENCY .'
CARING RESPONSIBILITIES

S

ARE MORE LIKELY TO

compared to
o,

= 30%
/of under-50s

HAVE USED
RESPITE

‘ FEEL IN
GOOD HEALTH

..AND LESS LIKELY TO

work, will help meet the increasing future demand. & | |VEWITH A
& MVENTAL HEALTH CARE
CONDITION IN THE PAST
12 MONTHS
‘ Those in their 50s and 60s are most likely to
‘ have caring responsibilities and are more @ Non-carer
likely to care for more than one person. Caring for one person
IOUT [ ] Caring for more than one person
OF Age band
FEMALES &
MOST LIKELY TO BE
CARING FOR A PARENT
o
. ©
' ouT o 15710
IOF MOST LIKELY TO BE OF
MALES CARING FOR A SPOUSE
b 3
oe
?
AGED 50+ HAVE

CARIN

BESPONSIBILITIES

o1
co

4.2 Care and Support: Carers

I I | | | I [ ' ! !
10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% A QUARTER

of the older workforce
have some kind of

CARING

RESPONSIBILITIES

OF CARE
PER WEEK

47% il with the general support
oMl provided to them as a carer

feel
satisfied

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
24



Assets

o
jab)
Q
@D
o))
(o]

4.2 Care and Support: Carers

STUDY "Mr & Mrs"

Both are in their 80s and were referred from their GP’s surgery to see what support we could offer them at Carers
Count. They have no family in the area.

After a discussion about their financial situation, it became apparent that “Mr” could claim Attendance Allowance
and a home visit was arranged to assist with filling out the form. After this was done he was awarded this at the
higher rate.

Following this, it was identified that “Mrs” received the underlying entitiement to Carers’ Allowance and her
pension credit was topped up. This has made a difference of approximately £400 to them each month.

They also mentioned that they were having problems with access to their home and were waiting to hear from
someone but they did not know who. Enquiries were made to Housing Association, Handy Care Team and
Accessible Housing and the work was expedited which has made access much easier for them.

They are now aware of all our services and are planning to attend our Coffee and Chat group in the near future
for support.

25


http://www.carerscount.org.uk/
https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/contact-the-council/frequent-contacts/default.aspx?contact=gatewaytocare@kirklees.gov.uk
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/carers/courses-for-carers.aspx

What next?

CENTR

N G
WSSO

\
\}IN\%—vgé\)\:?':

4 Care and Support

Insight...

Improve data quality on frailty and falls in older people to identify vulnerable and at-risk
groups.

Understand how referral and recovery rates and routes to Cognitive Behavioural
Therapy and psychotherapy differ between age groups.

Particular challenges for older carers from different Black and Minority Ethnic groups.
Understand the impacts of sensory impairment on quality of life and social networks and

access to services particularly for those facing additional language or communication
barriers.

Action...

Enable upstream, preventive interventions across the life course using evidence-based
commissioning of ‘age friendly’ services.

Utilise new technology to support people with sensory and cognitive impairments and
their carers to continue to live independently.

Enable older people to stay at home, feel safe and confident managing their daily
routines.

Develop activities and opportunities (including volunteering) specifically aimed at older
people.

Promote peer and mentor support.

Ensure older people have access to health services that do not discriminate and which
are equipped to provide safe, high quality care.

Co-production of social care provision, designing and delivering services in equal
partnership to improve outcomes for older people.

Promote and enable carer-friendly health and care services.

Access to stepped care approaches such as Cognitive Behavioural Therapy and
Psychotherapy.

Embed the Carer’s Charter across organisations.

Develop more Dementia Friendly initiatives.

Work with local businesses to help them recognise and support carers.
Support more carer break schemes.

Enable ‘hidden carers’ (those not in touch with formal support services) to find support
and advice.

Work collaboratively and creatively with carers to address their health and employment
outcomes.




Good Communities

Good housing throughout the life course helps people to stay warm, safe and healthy, and enable them to do the things that
are important to them. We know that people in later life spend more time in their homes and immediate neighbourhood than
any other age group.

People interact with outdoor spaces and the built environment in ways that reflect their lifestyles and
Accessible physical capabilities. For some older people, their external environment has a major impact on mobility,

Places access to resources and services, social participation, independence and quality of life. Places which are
accessible and supportive facilitate social inclusion.

Social Staying connected (with family, friends, events, services, news and activities) is a key part of life. Social relationships are
| cl’c":.‘ particularly important for older people, not only in facilitating access to support and leisure, but also in increasing resilience
nciusion and promoting recovery from illness in socio-economic circumstances that otherwise would be detrimental to health.

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016

The home and neighbourhood are
seen as having a crucial role in the
wellbeing of older people. The
home and place in which people
live are an essential element of
their quality of life; the home
cannot simply be viewed as a
‘setting’.

Neighbourhoods

.through a
life course
lens ~oe

Overcrowded
conditions have been
linked to slow growth in
childhood, which is
associated with an
increased risk of
coronary heart disease

Unfit housing is
linked to lower
educational
attainment and in later life. 21,22

The chronic stress of living greater likelihood
in dangerous or rundown  ©f unemployment.

neighbourhood can affect

parenting styles, which can

in turn affect children.

The sense of belonging to a place
is connected with identity;
deterioration in a neighbourhood
and fear of crime have a strong
negative influence on wellbeing by
limiting activity and engagement
with the outside world.

Having more affluent
neighbours can help
inspire more positive
norms among residents,
Experience of but not as much as “bad
multiple housing influences” can

problems increases undermine positive

children’s risk of ill- norms.

health and disability ~~ 4
Almost half of all by up to 25 per cent

childhood accidents  qgyring childhood and
are associated with early adulthood. »
physical conditions in
the home.

5 Good Communities 27



Snapshot

Over the next 20 years, there
will be an estimated 35,000
more people aged 50+ years
living in Kirklees. The number
of people aged 80+ years is
projected to almost double.

The majority of older people in
Kirklees want to stay in their
own homes with help and
support when needed. Those
living in familiar environments
that suit their needs can find it
easier to get out, and so are
more likely to be physically
active, connected and happy.
However, compared to the
rest of the population, people
in later life are more likely to
live in homes that are in a
state of disrepair and pose a
threat to health. Poor housing
for older people costs NHS at
least £634m every year.1®

Most people in later life live in
their own homes, but many
homes do not have the key
features required for
independent living.

i Itis estimated that...

3-4%

i of older people in Kirklees

5.1 Good Communities: Housing

m : Housing Composition, Planning & Suitability

Housing composition changes across the life
course due to life events such as becoming a
parent, becoming independent, marriage,
divorce, caring responsibilities and bereavement.

PLANNING
WHERE

THEY LIVE

The proportion of people living alone INCREASES WITH AGE:

(]
& 19%
A
g
S

Sog

803

OWNER
OCCUPIED o

708

Oas'_

[ I I I |
0% 20% 40% 80% 100%

S EEEEEEEE NS SN NN SN NN SN NN NN NN EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEY

: CERTAIN @ @
: LESS likely to ASIAN

:OLDER
: GROUPS
: LIVE ALONE *""N°TY @ ETHNlCITv

LEAST
DEPRIVED,

= are significantly

OWNE
OCCUPI

The reasons for

(o)

SEsEEEsEEEEEEEEEE,

is important ‘..
in planning for a *.,
long and healthy ,«

retirement

Certain older groups are more likely to feel this way...

H DEPANVED

SOCIAI.
HOUSING

9 3 A) of older people

feel that their home is

SUITABLE for their NEEDS

O i

The most common
reason cited by those
in their 50s and 60s is:

SOCIAL
HOUSING

The most common reasons cited by
those in their 70s and beyond are:

e’ UNSUITABILITY THEIR HOME
o CHANGE over | THER HOME), BE'NGLTﬂﬁGE
the course of  pEPAIRSoR fﬁﬁ
O B 70T cometo- LATER LIFE _ iMProvement =
° " 5
IHE PERSON  .oiewn et [UNSUITABLE
HOUSEHOLDS ~ ®omebodyeiee FOR THEIR

report feeling j
- W  socially isolated

"

Q

<

iKiMOBILITY NEED%H

i

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016

28



Assets

et

Safe
and

Well

Extra Care Housing schemes are a
group of self-contained flats provided by
Council-owned Private Finance Initiatives
(PFIs) and designed to maintain the
independence of older people (usually
50+) who have care and support needs.
Currently, there are schemes in
Heckmondwike, Crosland Moor and
Dewsbury. There are 50 more units in
development in Ashbrow, Huddersfield
which will be available in 2020. ®

A
Good L1
Neighbours
home from
hospital

%

Denham Court a retirement living
scheme in Batley, has recently
been converted from bedsitter-type
accommodation into 18 modern,
one bedroom properties adhering
to HAPPI criteria where possible to

ensure residents are able to
remain in their own homes. ®
~

™ G

€9 abed

5.1 Good Communities: Housing

There are various retirement living schemes across
Kirklees which are owned by Kirklees Council and
managed by KNH. All have communal facilities and
Wi-Fi and two have community centres; Finching
Grove and Oddfellows Street.

Activities include intergenerational initiatives and
those that reduce social isolation and encourage
health and wellbeing in later life. o

CARTRE e

Mr & Mrs L (aged 67 & 68) lived in a 3 bedroomed private rented house
for around 24 years. Due to deterioration in Mr L’s health they sought
support from Kirklees Council and were referred to the Accessible
Homes Team (AHT).

Mr L suffered with COPD (a chronic lung problem). Due to this he was
unable to get up and down the stairs to access his bedroom, bathing
facilities and toilet. The property also had a lot of damp that
exacerbated his breathing problems. The couple had converted their
dining room into a bedroom for Mr L and he based himself downstairs.
He had a specialist bed, a commode and his wife would strip wash him
daily. He would only go out for appointments but this was a struggle as
there were steps at the access of the property.

A home visit was carried out by a Medical Advisory Officer from AHT,
and band B (high medical priority) was awarded as the property could
not be adapted.

Mr & Mrs L bid on Choose ‘n” Move and they came top of a shortlist for
a one-bedroomed bungalow at Meltham which was already adapted
with a level access shower and was close to family support. AHT
worked with Kirklees Neighbourhood Housing (KNH) in order to
organise a viewing of the property. An Occupational Therapist from
AHT was also present at this viewing. The couple accepted the
property and moved in a couple of weeks later.

Following this, a further assessment was carried
out and, as Mr L was experiencing breathlessness
when walking, it was decided that the property
could be further adapted to make it wheelchair-
accessible for him; alterations were made to the
width of the door, and a ramp was created.

This enables Mr L to be more independent within
his own home. He is based on one level with easy
access to all facilities and is able to bathe
independently without assistance from his wife. He
is able to get out of his property independently, and
this in turn takes a lot of pressure off his wife who
was beginning to struggle. Without this move and
these adaptations, Mr L would have been at risk of
falls, infection and a break-down in care which in
turn would have impacted on NHS and Social Care
resources.


http://www.knh.org.uk/
https://www.choosenmove.org.uk/content/AboutChoosenMove

Snapshot

Well-designed and accessible

m : Mobility, Facilities & Safety
environments have a positive

effect on individual and community A hﬁg‘lg

health and wellbeing and reduce MOBILITY
isolation. For older people, these PROBLEMS "' M?QII;II};TY
could include well maintained BECOME MORE PREVALENT WITH AGE
recreational areas, ample rest

areas, safe pedestrian routes and

accessible buildings as well as

affordable and accessible

transport. 94% of older people 4OOUI§5

have cccess to

60s

e ~AH A e~

9% a41% | 13%

70s 80s+
A e H A e~
547% | 21% 75%|45%,

Those who use mobilit%aids are significantly less likely

Areas with more accessible green dumh  have to feel safe during the day than those who don't:
space are associated with better -tt?ocr'%edsiﬁgg

physical and mental health and the the past 12 ’ A @ h{ﬁ
risk of mortality caused by ”\ [nonths % @

cardiovascular disease is lower in =3

residential areas that have high PAR KO r

levels of “greenness”. There is also 4ER-E_E_N_S PACE M%IHRWIHE

evidence that exposure to nature
could be used as part of the
treatment for some conditions.23
llinesses related to sedentary
urban lifestyles are creating an
increasing economic and social
cost. In order to maintain good
health as we grow old, we need to
be more physically active
throughout our lives. Increasing the
accessibility of the local

v

Q @857 of older people find travelling to 82%
/00 community pharmacy easy

of those aged 50+

@ Q ®6%ﬁnd it difficult feel safe in their
“ local area

during the day..

environment can enable people to and
b tive, ften. o,
e more active, more often 67‘/5
feel safe
- A A A A after dark
Mobility problems are e | -
8 more prevalent in olc:ler—I 36% 41% 56% 79%
() |ieople with a higher BMI
Q \ HESE Y OVERWEIGHT OBESE ) 1
(BMI =18.5-24.9) (BMI = 25-29.9) (BMI = 30-39.9) (BMI = 40+)

s . S : C t Living in Kirkl CLiK) S , 2016
5.2 Good Communities: Accessible Places ource: Current Living in Kirklees (CLIK) Survey,



Tolsg, o
N Museum, Mergo(z'glb g;ﬁjoem
Huddersﬁe;gi

Rap

5 Sujy 2075
Y Parg
”St/’rgw 5

¥, Dementia
o Friendly

Nme‘““e‘a%\?ﬂ
geoto‘?.PLees
Thornhi!

Augu
figurzore

i,
Mirfilg " tanaue

‘CS:#JSDE‘ ‘ Local Improvements

Over the past few years, the Landscape Team have been making
imprexgments to local parks and green spaces across Kirklees to
incre'g their accessibility. '

(@) \

(9]

(@) N

o1 Se

“

-
— -
_— _._'-

5.2 Good Communities: Accessible Places 31


https://localoffer.bradford.gov.uk/Services/Details.aspx?mid=36
https://www.wymetro.com/corporate/news/releases/plus-points-for-customer-service/
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Split_Cycle_Offset_Optimisation_Technique

Snapshot

510/0of

The effect of maintaining adequate social

relationships is comparable with quitting smoking older people

and exceeds many known risk factors for feel that...
mortality. The causes of social isolation are

varied and older people are particularly people from
vulnerable, however there are many ‘protective DIFFERENT ETHNIC
factors’ that contribute to social inclusion;

maintaining friendships, retaining a good income, BACKGROUNDS GET
having access to transport, transitioning well from ON WELL TOGETHER

employment to retirement, keeping in contact with
children and family, keeping healthy and mobile
and good levels of health and digital literacy.

This was lowest in Mirfield and
Dewsbury South.

However, older people are at higher risk of
experiencing ‘trigger events’ such as
bereavement, having falls or facing other health
issues which may leave them feeling excluded.
Some groups of older people will face
discrimination because of their race/ ethnicity,
sexual orientation, mental ill-health and so on that

Older adults of Asian
ethnicity were
significantly more likely
than people of White
ethnicity to feel that people

ETHNIC

COHESION

may increase isolation. The number of single- A IAN WHITE
) - . ETHNICITY ETHNICITY
person households is predicted to rise
significantly, particularly amongst older people,
whilst at the same time many people are
becoming increasingly connected through . X
technological networks. Social Inclusion
"Socially included’:
Rarely/never experiencing feelings of loneliness or isolation
"Socially isolated’:

Experiencing feelings of loneliness or isolation some/most/all of the time

associated with depression (either as a cause or
consequence) and higher rates of mortality.

7OUT1°

5.3 Good Communities: Social Inclusion

different ethnic backgrounds get on well together:

Most people aged 50+ feel socially included. Loneliness is

m : Cohesion, Inclusion & Connectedness

570/0 of

older people
feel that..

people
TRUST EACH OTHER

67% of

older people
feel that...

their local areais a
place where people
TREAT EACH OTHER
WITH RESPECT AND
CONSIDERATION

compared to...
60%0F THOSE UNDER 50

Wellbeing is a significant predictor of social trust;
twice as many people with a high wellbeing score
felt that people trust each other locally than
people with a low wellbeing score:

WELLBEING

SCORE

9 ° SPENDING are |mp0rtcmt
8 6 A) of m 64%

 older people TIME WITH in planning fora -
FAMILY S long and healthy -
feel that... feel that... P :

FRIENDS retlrement

Social Connectedness

"Socially connected':
Having somebody to comfort you when upset OR to heip you out in a crisis

‘Socially disconnected’

Having nobody to comfort you when upset OR to help you out in a crisis

TAKING
PARTIN
A ACTIVITIES

Most people aged 50+ are socially connected; males are
more likely to lack social connections.

Older people who aren’t socially connected are less likely to

Ie CCross In Kirklees, rates of social inclusion are much lower in those feel in good health than those who are socially connected:
I"g CIS:TE' tCh;i:t who have suffered from depression within the previous 12 o GOODRHEALTH
DIFEERENT AGES monts: @ SOCIALLY - SOCIALLY SOCIALLY
GEDON WELL INCLUDED CONNECTED DISCONNECTED
TOBETHER 2

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
32



Assets ‘\u‘,A - o ' (S:'ﬁ.ISDE

Kirklees 7

Old‘er‘ J The project started with an officer from the Community Engagement & Development team
:ee?ﬁfrz engaging with faith and non-faith groups to identify whether they were willing to make time for an
event to bring communities together. Building rapport with groups helped to establish a planning

group of key partners from different communities.

‘ ‘ Walk With Us Project

The Walk With Us Project was inspired by the idea of bringing local people together to
find out more about their neighbours. Key partners included United Benefice of Batley
(C of E), Indian Muslim Welfare Society, Batley Bulldogs, Pakistani Kashmiri Welfare
Association, Batley Central Methodist, St Mary’s Batley, Batley Smile and the Police.

A group of 20 volunteers arrived an hour before the event as planned for their briefing.
The walk started on time at 2:30pm. The afternoon stroll in the sunshine begun with 200
local people walking together with smiles on their faces. People young and old, people
of different backgrounds, local businesses, and local police and fire crews took part.

The finishing line was at Batley Bulldogs Stadium. When everyone had arrived three short
speeches were made by local groups to thank partners for working together and to all involved for
building a stronger Batley community. Afternoon tea and cakes were served by volunteers soon
after and the walkers enjoyed the rest of the afternoon by getting to know each other and enjoying
the play activities.

The complexity of the event was heightened with the by-election just days away as their was
potential for electioneering. However, this was carefully balanced to minimise risks. Candidates
were able to attend but election campaigning was not allowed. Two candidates attended but this
was only in their community capacity to take part with the event. In the end this event created a
good feel factor in the community which many people felt was required given the current affairs
linked to the by election campaigns.

. There were many positive comments collected on the Friendship Tree:
“l made a brand new friend and met someone else to get crafty with - more woolly
projects will follow! Lovely Batley event” Julie
“There's a special feeling when you've been part of something amazing”

Mohammed

“So much goodwill and mutual respect let's keep the momentum going!”
Colin

5.3 Good Com ities: i i 33


https://menssheds.org.uk/
http://communitydirectory.kirklees.gov.uk/communityDirectory/organisationdetails.aspx?orgid=2396
http://communitydirectory.kirklees.gov.uk/communityDirectory/organisationdetails.aspx?orgid=2396
http://communitydirectory.kirklees.gov.uk/communityDirectory/organisationdetails.aspx?orgid=2684
https://www.creativekirklees.com/curtain-up-players/
http://communitydirectory.kirklees.gov.uk/communityDirectory/organisationdetails.aspx?orgid=1094

What next?
Insight...

Preventable illnesses and injuries resulting from inadequate housing.

amongst communities.

Which groups are more likely to experience loneliness and isolation at different life
stages or following different life events and how local assets can help to prevent this or
reduce the impacts.

OP\‘E How people in residential/care homes could remain at home for longer.

70 © What helps to make older people feel safe so they can more easily and confidently
access facilities and services in their communities.

Spatial and social barriers to using public transport (e.g. location of bus stops,
accessibility of vehicles).

More about the barriers and facilitators to participation in local networks and lifelong
learning opportunities.

AED
\_\_\GE“\%'F{\\\NG
WIE N\\SS . . .

CON\ Evidence to support commissioning and future supply of housing stock.

Return on investment for provision of specialist accommodation.

Perceptions, expectations and experiences of housing of different black and minority

EQ\)\-,‘E\.‘B ethnic (BME) groups and vulnerable groups.

5 Good Communities

How parks could be made more accessible and support their creation and maintenance

Action...

Encourage cycling and walking amongst all age groups.
Raise awareness of accessibility issues and barriers to services.

Promote active citizenship across the life course.

Facilitate planned downsizing.
Improve physical accessibility to aid social inclusion.

Enable older drivers to recognise whether physical problems or medication are affecting
their driving.

Support older people to maintain existing relationships and develop new connections.

Increase availability across all tenures to meet all needs and budgets.
Gendered interventions to tackle inclusion barriers.
Involve older people in design.

Reach people at ‘trigger points’ for increased loneliness/ isolation and signpost to
appropriate sources of support.

Improve access to green spaces to improve wellbeing.

Utilise psychological approaches to loneliness, e.g. cognitive behavioural therapy and
mindfulness.

Inclusive design of outdoor spaces (adequate seating, public toilets, etc.).
Provide audible and visual road crossings and short crossing distances.
Familiar location to maintain community ties and stability.

Promote intergenerational relationships.

Utilise technology.

Use the Local Plan to achieve accessible, safe, and people-centred communities for
new infrastructure, and protect and enhance accessibility of existing facilities.

34



Working Longer

As people live longer, extended working is becoming more common. There are
more people aged 50+ years in employment than ever before. By 2022, one in
three of the working age population will be aged 50+ years. Nationally,
legislation already supports fuller working lives, with the reform of the State
Pension since 2010, the removal of the default Retirement Age in 2011 and
employees being given the right to request flexible working after six months
continuous service.

Emplogment

Retirement

The most important factors that motivate people to volunteer later in life are
putting a structure on free time, a way of continuing to use skills acquired
through work and a route to explore and develop new skills unhindered by the
demands of paid employment. These are in addition to the reasons that apply to
volunteering across the life course: the desire to help others, a need to feel
useful and valued, the desire to make friends, and enjoyment of the activity itself.

Volunteering

Competence in oral language and the
resulting transition to literacy is seen as
crucial as a protective factor in ensuring
later academic success, positive self-esteem
and improved life chances. The acquisition
of cognitive skills is strongly associated
with better outcomes across the life course
over a range of domains including
employment, income and health.

Language &

through a
life course
lens

00 @

A significant number of children have
Speech, Language and Communication
Needs (SLCN), but they fall into two groups.
It is estimated that around 10% of all children
have a long-term persistent SLCN, whereas
upwards of 50% of children on school entry
have more transient difficulties and, with the
right support, are likely to catch up.2

identified at

There is a link between 2" continue

early spoken language
skills and subsequent
reading and writing skills.

6 Working Longer

ommumcatlon

There is evidence that the
social class distinction for
communication skills

The quality of retirement is influenced by factors affecting retirement ‘readiness’
as well as events during retirement and the extent to which the reality of
retirement lives up to expectations. Longer life expectancy is changing the
structure of families so more generations are living simultaneously and many
adults are juggling work and caring roles. This can create new challenges for
families, communities and services as well as opportunities for inter-generational
approaches to improving health and wellbeing.

Evidence shows that
these skills can improve
people’s retirement
savings and their work
and health outcomes.

2

Financial and
technological
skills will be
increasingly
jmportant as
the population
ages.

Low income
throughout the life
course will adversely
impact upon the
ability to save for a
pension and be

flnanuallyfgcigedn

later life.

People with SLCN
will have restricted
employment
opportunities
limiting them to
routine or semi-
routine work or to
unemployment.

Thereis a high
correlation between
children with special

educational needs

and youth crime. 50%

off the UK prison
population has been
identified as having
literacy difficulties
compared to 17% of

Because of their poor
conversational skills,
limited non-verbal
skills and often
poorly developed

social understanding, the general
children wlth SLCN population I
pre-school are more likely than * &

their peers to find
peer interaction and
forming real
friendships difficult.

into adult life.

o
A



Snapshot m : Employment Status

@ Working full time

Employment status changes over the
course of later life as people make
different, and sometimes non-traditional,
transitions from working to retirement:

Working part time
® self-employed
@ Unemployed
@ Long-term sick
@ Retired
Something else

Working later in life has
benefits for individuals
and families, employers

Age band
and wider society. For ™
most people, remaining in q,o’q’
work as they age is good
for both finances and o
health and wellbeing. g"’

o
There are a number of
factors that influence ™
early exit from the labour &°
market. Some workers ©
leave employment &
‘voluntarily’ having 4,'“’
planned financially for ©
retirement but for others
leaving the labour market S
early is a result of ill
health, caring 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
responsibilities or
redundancy. 88% of

olderpeople srmmmanannan,
& feslthat.. & Gombotante.
slong and heclthy .
Positive aspects of ;. fotirement *
retirement may include
more leisure or family
time, or a chance to
pursue lifelong or new 7% 49% 249, 3sL7Cs
interests. Employees ‘
Ere 29%

Negative aspects of ~ Ynemployed Fﬁ
retirement may include a % 5%
fall iMdving standards, Retirees
soci®isolation or a loss

79%

of thefstatus and identity “
3+LTCs

; Long-term
assc:lated with work. 9 TR

© [oL7Cs| (2 LTCsI

6.1 Working Longer: Employment and Retirement

\_’ with how CONFIDENT older

feel

SOCIALLY
ISOLATED

\ employee ®
aged 50+1_|_*|
Employment in \atorliTcl

is positively associated compared to...

OUT

feel USEFUL
OFTEN or ALLtheTIME
compared to

with having a sense of ouT of those on
of purpose and reduced 3 long-term
retirees| | of those who uelingsofisolution‘ sick/disabled
orunemployed
Aroun 599%o |
OUT employees ABSENTEES
aged 50+
aged 50+ [ s
hcwe been ]g'revented Fp————
from working in the past MORE THAN
6 MONTHS...
12 months due to a .
PHYSICALor MENTAL CONDITIONIOF4 i 37%q

OF THOSE AGED 50+...
0%33%
of emeYees of unemployed

18%-,

of retirees

Older employees have
a lower rate of multiple
long-term conditions than
those who are unemployed,
retired or on long-term sick.

of those on
snck?d%ublad

@

OVG

MENTAL
HEALTH
CONDITION

Employment status is associated

people feel about managing their
----- OWN HEALTH

A ()
O
- .

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016
36



Jobcentreplus

Problem
solving skills

Reliability

A more dynamic labour market and the
impact of automation on jobs mean that
workers of all ages need to adapt to more
frequent and significant changes during
their working lives and that re-training and

re-skilling are increasingly important.

Age-diverse teams offer benefits for
employers, including:

Experience

Greater
innovation

Punctuality

Different
perspectives

Knowledge
sharing

Professionalism

Interpersonal
skills

Mentoring

Participation
falh'ng, Old
o receive

6.1 Working Longer: Employment and Retirement

In organjseq

Cross socijo
9roups, genders a,

d ethnicities.

adult learning jg
urrently less likely

~économic

A special note on: "Grandparenting"

Higher life expectancy provides a number of retirement opportunities, particularly for
increasing the positive contribution of grandparents who play a significant role in the
provision of childcare nationally.

"Grandparenting” can...

~help younger
generations remain
in employment

.foster a child's
sense of wellbeing

.promote resilience
in later life

The proportion of grandparents who are of working age is set to grow as the retirement age
gradually rises.

Grandparenting responsibilities can impact on people’s ability to work, their health and
wellbeing and their opportunities to volunteer as well as the financial implications of saving
and future childcare provision.

¢ TN NN NN RN NN AN NN AR NN EENNNEEEANNNEEEAEEEREEEEEREEEEy,

NATIONALLY:

QUT QUT 4 OUT3§
.IOF5 .\!V(())REWG &lvlng)ulleG
GRANDMOTHERS .
PROVIDES g/\V|[N] =S MOTHERS :

USE GRANDPARENTS FOR CHILDCARE -

with GRANDCHILDREN @

UNDER 16 (B o

OF CHILDCARE help out with

PER WEEK CHILDCARE

AN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEES

e NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NS EE NN EEEEEEEEEEN,

pEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

-

37


https://www.wea.org.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/contact-jobcentre-plus
http://www.worksbetter.co.uk/
https://learning-employment.com/jobseekers/
https://nodesiretoretire.com/
http://www.knh.org.uk/
http://www.croslandmoorclc.co.uk/
https://www.ckcareers.co.uk/

Snapshot

Volunteering brings many
benefits to people who
volunteer including:

l\/ improved quality of
life;

< improved life
ryv satisfaction;

3 improved ability to
cope with ill health;

Thealthier lifestyles;

§Cﬁl).f improved family

relationships;

improved social
networks;

esteem;

&;" improved self-

sense of purpose.

m : The Benefits of Volunteering

oy of people INFORMAL
During 33% aged 50+ "V GG UNTEERING
the past
12 MONTHS oy Of people
30 Zo aged 5o+ "V O EOLUBTEERINI(; oy,
95 e

There is a social gradient...
@ @ «« THOSE LIVING IN THE LEAST DEPRIVED AREAS
24?/ 36?/ ARE MOST LIKELY TO FORMALLY VOLUNTEER
o (s}

'VOLUNTEERING in later life’

IS ASSOCIATED WITH HIGHER WELLBEING SCORES*:

NO
VOLUNTEERING |, yNTEERING

45711111t

292305%2 VOLUNTEER ot least monthly

There is
MOST

a social
ATES OF are already HIGHEST among g LEI'R

I'm satisfied with
my life nowadays

The things | doin
life are worthwhile

| felt happy
ycsterdc:y (5

w

It is also important to remember the valuable
contribution of volunteers and volunteering to
improved outcomes for the individuals,
families and communities they work with.

...s0 encpuraging and enabling more people to volunteer across the life course as well as in later life is an important contributor to ageing well.

6.2 Working Longer: Volunteering

Source: Current Living in Kirklees (CLiK) Survey, 2016

38



Assets

Volunteering

Kirklees Museums and Galleries (KMAG) offer a wide range of volunteering opportunities. These include:
» Gardening and Conservation at Oakwell Hall and Country Park;

* Research roles ‘behind the scenes’ with the Curators;

» Public Engagement roles supporting a busy events programme.

The volunteer programme attracts a large number of retired Kirklees residents with successful retention rates —
over half have been volunteering for at least three years.

In 2016, KMAG commissioned the Audience Agency to assess the health and wellbeing impacts of their
volunteer programme over a two year period. The evaluation framework focused on the ‘Five Ways to
Wellbeing:

Over Over

1000

unregistered

voluntary
organisations

registered

voluntary
organisations

Volunteers were invited to complete a survey, which was then followed up with some one-to-one interviews. The
study identified positive health and wellbeing impacts for KMAG volunteers, spanning all ‘Five Ways to
Wellbeing’ pathways:

People Helping People

@ 84% of volunteers increased their opportunity to spend time with other people.

63% of volunteers have increased the amount of physical activity they do through their
volunteering role

@ 90% of volunteers agree that they have learnt new things through their role.
100% believe they make a worthwhile contribution to society through their volunteering
work.
The interviews also uncovered some personal stories in relation to why people volunteer and how volunteering
has helped them through difficult times in their lives:

“After a second mental breakdown | needed a reason to get out of bed”

“I feel a lot fitter and a lot stronger than what | was before; coming here has given me a better
purpose”

“The thing with having a stroke is, it can leave you quite tired by the middle afternoon, but |
don’t get that now...Because I’'m interacting with people and there are quite a variety of things
so | don’t get bored.”

“.one of the reasons why I still do it, is it’s just been so beneficial for my mental health.”

¢/ abed

6.2 Working Longer: Volunteering

g—ﬁj%g ‘ ‘ Kirklees Museums and Galleries

39


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/five-ways-to-mental-wellbeing
http://volunteeringkirklees.org.uk/
http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/people_helping_people

What next?

Insight... Action...

FE Explore motivations for volunteering at different ages. Build on, work with and support existing local assets that are enabling lifelong learning
URS . in communities across Kirklees.

Enable lifelong learning and address barriers to participation in adult education.

Identify more opportunities for enabling volunteering across the life course, bringing
different generations together and combining volunteering with paid employment.

OPLQE Explore the barriers and facilitators to preparing for older age. Support self-employment which may prolong participation in work for older age groups.
=

Aone 9 Enable individuals to reskill throughout their lifetime; explore opportunities for wider
development not just current work role (e.g. financial and technological skills to improve
retirement savings, work and health outcomes).

Explore the opportunities for collaborating on the commissioning/ provision of pre-
retirement information/ education/ support (e.g. Age UK run pre-retirement seminars
around the country).

Explore opportunities for encouraging people to think about working and retirement
options whilst they are ‘middle aged’ and plan ahead for later life.

Increase community volunteering opportunities for older people. This would also provide
settings for older people to socialise and reduce feelings of isolation.

CE‘\'E% Enable preventative “health at work” programmes.

WGRLON
\\‘\T%}\N\\SS\ % Flexible working policies (e.g. flexible working hours and home—office solutions to
enable paid work alongside unpaid care).

Train managers to understand ageing workforce requirements.

Support local businesses to improve the health and wellbeing of their staff and to
facilitate the retention, retraining and recruitment of older workers.

NT P\L Explore how the Wellness Service can work with businesses to improve staff wellbeing.  Signpost people to useful checklists and advice to help them to prepare for retirement

\ . . emotionally.
1\‘ Gain insights into the cultural aspects of working into older age and retirement. Embed Inclusion & Diversity principles in the workplace to prevent and respond to age

9.) Eau\m discrimination.

Assess support required by grandparents around childcare. Collaborate with carers to find out how best to manage the balance between caring

\l responsibilities and working.
FM"TC&D ponsibilities and working

Support the existing voluntary sector in Kirklees to continue to thrive and develop.

6 Working Longer 40


http://www.ageuk.org.uk/travel-lifestyle/people/preparing-emotionally-for-retirement/
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/delivering-services/pdf/inclusion-diversity-statement.pdf

References

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

19.

20.

22.

23.

24.
25.

Burnby D. Outcomes Based Accountability [Internet]. 2018 [cited 2018 Jun 22]. Available from: https://davidburnby.co.uk/oba/

Kirklees Council. Caring for Our Futures : A vision for adult social care and support in Kirklees. 2016.

Marmot M. Fair Society , Healthy Lives Fair Society, Healthy Lives. 2010.

C4EO. Grasping the nettle: early intervention for children, families and communities. [Internet]. 2010. Available from: www.C4EO.org.uk

Buttriss J.L., Welch A.A., Kearney J.M., Lanham-New S.A. Public Health Nutrition: The Nutrition Society Textbook. 2nd ed. John Wiley & Sons; 2017.

Marcenes W, Kassebaum NJ, Bernabé E, Flaxman A, Naghavi M, Lopez A, et al. Global burden of oral conditions in 1990-2010: a systematic analysis. J Dent Res [Internet].
2013;92(7):592-7. Available from: http://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pubmed/23720570%5Cnhttp://www.pubmedcentral.nih.gov/articlerender.fcgi?artid=PMC4484374

Treerutkuarkul A., Gruber K. Prevention is better than treatment. Bull World Health Organ [Internet]. 2015;9(93):594—6. Available from: http://www.who.int/bulletin/volumes/93/9/15-
020915.pdf

Burton-Jeangros C., Cullati S., Sacker A., Blane D. A Life Course Perspective on Health Trajectories and Transitions [Internet]. Vol. 4. 2015. 2015 p. Available from:
http://link.springer.com/10.1007/978-3-319-20484-0

Kirklees Council Intelligence Hub. Kirklees Factsheets 2017 [Internet]. 2017. Available from: https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/information-and-data/pdf/fact-2017.pdf

Department for Communities and Local Government. The English Index of Multiple Deprivation ( IMD ) 2015 — Guidance What is the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015 and how can |
use it? 2015;1-7.

Public Health England. Making the case for tackling obesity — why invest? [Internet]. 2015. Available from: https://www.noo.org.uk/slide_sets

House of Commons Health Committee. Managing the care of people with long—term conditions. Second Rep Sess 2014-15 [Internet]. 2014;Volume I(July):1-89, Ev1-131. Available
from: http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmhealth/401/40102.htm

The Academy of Medical Royal Colleges. Exercise: The miracle cure and the role of the doctor in promoting it. Rep from Acad Med R Coll [Internet]. 2015;(February). Available from:
http://www.aomrc.org.uk/

Ekelund, U., Ward, H.,, Norat, T., Luan, J., May, A.M., Weiderpass, E., et al. Physical activity and all-cause mortality across levels of overall and abdominal adiposity in European
men and women : the European Prospective Investigation into Cancer and Nutrition Study ( EPIC ) 1 — 6 The EPIC cohort. Am J Clin Nutr. 2015;(June):613-21.

Age UK. Later life in the United Kingdom. Factsheet April [Internet]. 2018;(March). Available from: https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-
publications/later_life_uk_factsheet.pdf

Cooper C., Goswami U, Sahakian B. Mental Capital and Wellbeing [Internet]. Wiley; 2009. 421 p. Available from:
https://books.google.co.uk/books?id=kyRCcB5alzsC&printsec=frontcover&source=gbs_ge_summary_r&cad=0#v=onepage&q&f=false

NHS England. Older people living with frailty [Internet]. [cited 2018 Jul 6]. Available from: https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/ltc-op-eolc/older-people/frailty/

Borenstein AR, Copenhaver Cl, Mortimer JA. Early-life risk factors for Alzheimer disease. Alzheimer Dis Assoc Disord. 2006;20(1):63-72.

Alzheimer’s Disease International. Smoking increases risk of dementia [Internet]. 2014. [cited 2018 Jul 5]. Available from: https://www.alz.co.uk/news/smoking-increases-risk-of-
dementia

Clegg A, Young J, lliffe S, Olde Rikkert MGM, Rockwood K. Frailty in older people summary. Lancet. 2013;381(9868):752—62.

Harker L. Chance of a lifetime. 2006.

GALSTER G. How Neighborhoods Affect Health, Well-being, and Young People’s Futures. 2014;1-4. Available from: http://www.macfound.org/media/files/fHHM_Research_Brief_-
_How_Neighborhoods_Affect_Health.pdf

Parliamentary Office of Science and Technology. Green Space and Health: POSTnote.538 [Internet]. 2016;(October):1-5. Available from:
http://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/POST-PN-0538?utm_source=directory&utm_medium=website&utm_campaign=PN538#fullreport

CAN Talk. The Cost to the Nation of Children ’ s Poor Communication. 2009;(2):16.

Williams J, Clemens S, Oleinikova K, Tarvin K. The Skills for Life survey (DfES). Social Research. 2003.

Definitions

Def A

Def B

Def C

Def D

Def E

Def F

Life satisfaction: Based on response to the question “On the scale of 0 to 10: overall how satisfied are you with your life nowadays?” [Defined as: Low=0-4,
Medium=5-6, High=7-10].

Wellbeing: A subjective evaluation of how we feel about our lives. Based on responses to the questions from the Short Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing Scale
(SWEMWABS). [Defined as: Low=7-19.3, Medium = 20-27, High=28.1-35].

Resilience: Being able to adapt compassionately in the face of adversity, yet continue to function normally. Based on agreement with the statement “I tend to bounce
back quickly after hard times”.

(Statistical) Significance: The likelihood that the difference between comparable numbers is caused by something other than mere chance. In this report, only
statistically significant differences are highlighted where 95% confidence intervals do not overlap.

Long-term conditions (LTCs): Chronic diseases for which there are currently no cure and which may be managed with drugs and other treatment (including, but not
limited to, depression, anxiety, other mental health conditions, asthma, cancer, chronic pulmonary disease, diabetes, heart disease, long-term pain,
sciatica/lumbago/recurring backache, neuromuscular condition, musculoskeletal/rheumatological problems, dermatological problems or continence problems).

Body Mass Index (BMI): Used to determine a person’s weight in regard to their height to indicate whether they are underweight, of a healthy weight, overweight or
obese. [Defined as: BMI under 18.5= Underweight, between 18.5 & 24.9 =Healthy weight, between 25 & 29.9= overweight, between 30 & 30.9= obese, 40+= very obese]

G, abed

Acknowledgements

Helen Bewsher
Andrew Fitzpatrick
Helen Jessop
Owen Richardson

Sarah Thurgood
- PUBLIC HEALTH INTELLIGENCE

Simone Arratoonian
Rebecca Elliott

Priti Gohil

Maxine Hamilton
Carl Mackie
Sharron McMahon
Anna Twelves

Lucy Wearmouth
- PUBLIC HEALTH

Fatima Khan-Shah
- GREATER HUDDERSFIELD CCG

Karen Fozzard
Emma Mills
Carol Oakden
Karen Oates

Adrian Wisniewski
- STREETSCENE & HOUSING

Michelle Anderson
- KIRKLEES NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSING

Sandra Croft

Chris Porter
- COMMISSIONING & HEALTH PARTNERSHIPS

David Bundy

- POLICY & PARTNERSHIPS

Bridget Hughes

- COMMUNITY LEARNING WORKS

Rebecca Bracey
- KIRKLEES MUSEUMS & GALLERIES

Saul Muldoon
- COMMUNITIES & LEISURE

Tina Roper
- COMMUNICATIONS




AgeingjWell
iny Kirklees

GKilees

9, abed



Agenda ltem 12:

COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday 7 November 2018

AGENDA ITEM 12 - WRITTEN QUESTIONS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12

(1)  Question by Councillor Holmes to the Leader of the Council
(Councillor Pandor)

“Is Kirklees Council the country’s biggest user of meat from animals that have their
throats slit while fully conscious — despite 80% of all UK halal meat being humanely
stunned first, which is accepted by the Halal Food Authority?”
The Leader of the Council to respond

(2) Question by Councillor Armer to the Deputy Chair of West Yorkshire
Combined Authority Transport Committee (Councillor E Firth)
"l have received an anguished communication from a resident of Shelley in my
Ward to the effect that she is at risk of losing her job due to the abysmal level of
service supplied by the local bus company. This woman has a poorly-paid but
socially vital job as a carer for dementia sufferers. In his role as Portfolio Holder
for Economy, what help can the Cabinet Member offer to her?"
The Committee Member to respond

(3) Question by Councillor Armer to the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

(Councillor Kendrick)

"Will the Leader please inform this Council as to the legal definition of a child in
England within the terms of the Children Acts 1989 and 2004 7?"

The Cabinet Member to respond
(4) Question by Councillor Armer to the Leader of the Council
(Councillor Pandor)

"Is the Leader confident that this Council has, from 2000 to date, consistently
discharged its duties under the relevant Children Acts?"

The Leader of the Council to respond

Page 77



()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Question by Councillor Armer to Cabinet Member for Learning and
Aspiration (Councillor Ahmed)

"Can the Leader or Cabinet Member confirm that the Council's Education
Department shares the Council's responsibilities under the Children Acts 1989 and
2004, and that individual schools must be compliant?"

The Cabinet Member to respond

Question by Councillor Armer to the Cabinet Member for Learning and
Aspiration (Councillor Ahmed)

"Can the Leader or Cabinet Member clarify whether or not schools have duties
under the Children Acts 1989 and 2004 with regard to all children on their
premises with their permission, rather than just to their enrolled pupils.
Specifically, do these duties extend to children who are on school premises as
part of a work experience programme sponsored by another school?"

The Cabinet Member to respond

Question by Councillor Armer to the Cabinet Member for Learning and
Aspiration (Councillor Ahmed)

"Can the Leader or Cabinet Member explain what, if any, responsibility this
Council had for the actions or inactions of Faith Schools within Kirklees with
regard to compliance with the respective Children Acts responsibilities during the
period 2000 to date?"

The Cabinet Member to respond

Question by Councillor Armer to the Cabinet Member for Housing and
Democracy (Councillor Scott)

"Can the Leader or Cabinet Member please inform Council how many tenancies
Kirklees Neighbourhood Housing has granted to persons under the age of 18
years in each year between 2002 to date?"

The Cabinet Member to respond

Question by Councillor Armer to Cabinet Member for Housing and
Democracy (Councillor Scott)

"Can the Leader or Cabinet Member confirm that since its inception in 2002
Kirklees Neighbourhood Housing has fully complied with the terms of the

Children Act 19897?"

The Cabinet Member to respond

Page 78



(10) Question by Councillor McGuin to the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
(Councillor Turner)

"On Saturday the volunteers at Aimondbury Library were told a consultation on a
move, for the library, to the Surestart building would start on Monday 5th. Is this
adequate notice for them and for the councillors?

74% of people in the last consultation said that they wanted to stay in the present
building. Is there an expectation of a different result in this consultation?”

The Cabinet Member to respond
(11) Question by Councillor McGuin to the Cabinet Member for Health and Social
Care (Councillor Khan)

"How quickly will the council move to close the Homestead Day Care/Dementia
centre and move it to the Surestart Centre?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

(12) Question by Councillor McGuin to the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
(Councillor Turner)
"Is the Cabinet aware that decisions made by Kirklees whether it be by them or
officers of the council, particularly as regards public buildings, has had a
profound effect on the people of Aimondbury, Lepton, and Moldgreen?”
The Cabinet Member to respond

(13) Question by Question by Councillor McGuin to the Cabinet Member for

Corporate Services (Councillor Turner)

"Have the Clergy House garages in Aimondbury been removed from the disposal
of asset list agreed on August 21st by the Cabinet?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

(14) Question by Councillor Light to the Leader of the Council (Councillor Pandor)

"Given that there are now a number of air quality improvement areas across the
borough and that recent research is now clearly linking poor air quality with poor
health, will the Leader make a policy commitment to make improving air quality a
key priority for the Council and in doing so commit the Council to introduce a
Moss Tree in every air quality improvement area?”

The Leader of the Council to respond

Page 79



(15) Question by Councillor Bellamy to the Cabinet Member for Communities and
Environment (Councillor Mather)

"What help and assistance do we give to charities and businesses to help them
dispose of waste that has been fly tipped onto their land, that the land owners
and volunteers have removed?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

(16) Question by Councillor Iredale to the Cabinet Member for Economy
(Councillor McBride)

“In the last fortnight, several stalls have closed at Queensgate Market, and there
are a lot of empty stalls now. The market is uninviting. What is the Council doing
to rectify this?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

(17) Question by Councillor Lawson to the Cabinet Member for Economy
(Councillor McBride)

“The Council has an ambitious target of delivering 10,000 new homes by 2023.
What is the Council doing to make sure that its planning office has enough
capacity to meet this challenge?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

(18) Question by Councillor Munro to the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
(Councillor Turner)

“We have a great library in Aimondbury which is in an historic purpose-built
Carnegie library building, for which there is overwhelming local support for the
service to remain there. So why are the Council intent on moving it to the Sure
Start Centre which will only dilute the service?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

(19) Question by Councillor Munro to the Cabinet Member for Economy
(Councillor McBride)

“My question concerns the Local Plan. The time for responding to the additional
modifications proposed by the Inspector closed on October 1s. | note that on all
Council owned land across Kirklees, the wording: "This site is owned by Kirklees
and as such could deliver enhanced affordable housing and green infrastructure
and offer design and quality that is of a high standard” has been deleted. | have
not seen any recorded comments from Cabinet to suggest that they do not agree
with the Inspectors proposed modification. My question therefore is:

How can the Cabinet justify this when there is a backlog of over 6,000 affordable
homes required to be built over the next few years to clear the backlog according
to the Strategic Housing Market assessment 2016.”

The Cabinet Member to respond Page 80



	Agenda
	3: Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4: Declaration of Interests
	8: West Yorkshire Combined Authority - Minutes
	10: Annual Report of Director of Public Health - Healthy Ageing
	public-health-report-2018

	12: Written Questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members, Chairs of Committees and Nominated Spokespersons

